
 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

ABN 25 086 471 007 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

ANNUAL REPORT 
30 June 2017 

 



BLINA MINERALS NL 

AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES 

ABN 25 086 471 007 

ANNUAL REPORT 30 JUNE 2017 

P a g e | i 

Corporate directory 

 

Current Directors 

Brett Fraser  Non-executive Chairman  

David Porter Non-executive Director  

Jay Stephenson Non-executive Director  

 

Company Secretary 

Julia Beckett  

  

Registered Office Share Registry 

Street:  283 Rokeby Road Security Transfer Registrars Pty Limited 

  SUBIACO WA 6008 Street:  770 Canning Highway 

Postal:  PO Box 52   Applecross WA 6153 

  WEST PERTH WA 6872 Postal:  PO Box 535 

Telephone:  +61 8 9426 0688   Applecross WA 6953 

Facsimile:   +61 8 6141 3599 Telephone:  +61 8 9315 2333 

Website:   www.blinaminerals.com.au  Email:  registrar@securitytransfer.com.au  

  

Securities Exchange Auditor 

Australian Securities Exchange Nexia Perth Audit Services Pty Ltd 

Level 40, Central Park, 152-158 St Georges Terrace Level 3, 88 William Street 

Perth WA 6000 Perth WA 6000 

Telephone:  131 ASX (131 279) (within Australia) Telephone:  +61 8 9463 2463 

Telephone:  +61 8 9224 0000  

Facsimile: +61 8 9227 0885 Corporate Adviser 

Website:  www.asx.com.au  Wolfstar Group Pty Ltd 

ASX Code: BDI Barringtons House, 283 Rokeby Road 

 SUBIACO WA 6008 

 Telephone:  +61 8 9426 0688 

 Website:  www.wolftstargroup.com.au  

  

  

  

 
  

http://www.blinaminerals.com.au/
mailto:registrar@securitytransfer.com.au
http://www.asx.com.au/index.htm
http://www.asx.com.au/asx/research/companyInfo.do?by=asxCode&allinfo=&asxCode=BDI
http://www.wolftstargroup.com.au/


BLINA MINERALS NL 

AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES 

ABN 25 086 471 007 

ANNUAL REPORT 30 JUNE 2017 

P a g e | ii 

 
 

ANNUAL REPORT 
30 June 2017 
 

Contents 

 

 Review of operations ............................................................................................................................................................. 1 

 5ƛǊŜŎǘƻǊǎΩ ǊŜǇƻǊǘ .................................................................................................................................................................... 4 

 Remuneration report ............................................................................................................................................................. 8 

 !ǳŘƛǘƻǊΩǎ ƛƴŘŜǇŜƴŘŜƴŎŜ ŘŜŎƭŀǊŀǘƛƻƴ ................................................................................................................................... 13 

 Consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income ...................................................................... 14 

 Consolidated statement of financial position ...................................................................................................................... 15 

 Consolidated statement of changes in equity ..................................................................................................................... 16 

 Consolidated statement of cash flows ................................................................................................................................. 17 

 Notes to the consolidated financial statements .................................................................................................................. 18 

 5ƛǊŜŎǘƻǊǎΩ declaration .......................................................................................................................................................... 45 

 Independent auditor's report .............................................................................................................................................. 46 

 Corporate governance statement ........................................................................................................................................ 47 

 Additional information for listed public companies ............................................................................................................ 53 

 Tenement report ................................................................................................................................................................. 55 

 



BLINA MINERALS NL 

AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES 

ABN 25 086 471 007 

ANNUAL REPORT 30 JUNE 2017 

P a g e | 1 

Review of operations 

1. Exploration 

a. Dingo Gold Project, Western Australia  

In March 2017, Blina acquired the Dingo Gold Project, Exploration License (EL) 31/1138, located approximately 160km 

north-north-east of Kalgoorlie, and to the east of Yerilla and west of Mt Remarkable in the Eastern Goldfields region of 

Western Australia. The project of about 13 square kilometres covers the McAuliffe Well Syenite where surficial gold 

mineralisation has been identified in the regolith above the syenite. Little is known about the gold mineralisation and 

Blina has initiated field-based programmes to investigate and test the style, extent and tenor of gold mineralisation. 

 

Figure 1: Dingo Project Location 

(1) Project Geology and Gold Mineralisation 

The Dingo Project is located within the western flank of the Kilkenny Tectonic Zone, a north-north-western trending 

structural zone which has provided a conduit for mineralising fluids in the region. The Keith Tectonic Zone separates 

the Malcolm greenstone belt to the west from the Murrin greenstone belt to the east.  

The Dingo Gold mineralisation is associated with the McAuliffe Well Syenite. The mineralisation at Dingo has been 

defined occupying an area of 400x300m from a depth of 8m. Mineralisation is hosted in ferruginous, cemented rock 

and saprolite developed over the syenite. The syenite itself represents a far larger exploration target that warrants 

further investigation. 

To date low grade syenite hosted gold mineralisation has been intersected over broad intervals beyond the levels of 

secondary enrichment. This has only undergone limited testing to date.  

(2) Field based exploration 

A program of detailed geological mapping and geochemical sampling has been undertaken during the year in order 

to achieve the following objectives: 

 Determination of site based logistics and proximal infrastructure 

 Detailed geological and structural mapping 

 Validation of the location of historical drill collars 

 Confirmatory mapping of defined prospect areas 

 Rock chip geochemical sampling in order to gain an understanding of the nature of the gold mineralisation 

 Development of further exploration programs in order to define the extents and tenor of mineralisation within 

the Project area 
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Review of operations 

Rock chip geochemical samples have been taken and have been submitted to the analytical laboratory for analysis 

but results have so far not been received by Blina.  

(3) Historical Exploration 

A total of 226 shallow RAB holes totalling 4,310m (maximum hole depth of 45m) have been completed across the 

Dingo Project by previous explorers. Significant (>0.5g/t Au RAB) results from drilling include: 

Table 1: >0.5g/t Au RAB Drill Results 

 

 

Figure 2: Drill Collar Plan 

 

Hole From To Interval Au g/t 

DGR006 18 19 1 1.03 

DGR012 8 9 1 2.69 

DGR021 7 9 2 0.63 

DGR022 8 9 1 1.67 

DGR024 8 9 1 1.61 

DGR026 9 10 1 0.86 

DGR033 8 9 1 1.45 

DGR035 6 7 1 0.93 

DGR042 7 8 1 1.16 

DGR045 5 9 4 1.01 

DGR049 5 7 2 0.95 

DGR053 4 6 2 1.07 

DGR057 4 5 1 1.63 

DGR058 5 6 1 0.63 

DGR062 3 4 1 0.86 

YER135 9 11 2 2.6 

YER143 9 10 1 12.28 

YER144 12 13 1 0.8 

YER145 29 30 1 1.72 

YER158 10 11 1 6.94 

YER159 9 11 2 2.2 

YER160 5 6 1 1.11 

YER186 25 26 1 0.53 

YER191 4 8 4 0.59 

YER192 5 6 1 1.23 

YER204 10 11 1 0.91 

YER205 24 29 5 0.5 

2. Diakouli Gold Project, Burkina Faso, West Africa 

Blina has had a long term joint venture in Burkina Faso where work was suspended in 2016 following political unrest and 

terrorist attacks. Under the terms of the Diakouli Joint Venture, Blina has the right to earn an 80% interest in the 

exploration permit by spending US$500,000 over a period of 4 years. So far expenditure incurred by Blina amounts to 

approximately US$370,000. In early 2017 Blina applied through its joint venture partner Mr B Traore for an extension for 

3 years to the existing Diakouli exploration permit. At the same time Blina initiated an independent review of technical 

data for the Diakouli Joint Venture property following the improved geopolitical situation in Burkina Faso. 

The future of the Joint Venture has once more become uncertain following further terrorist attacks in the Country in 

August 2017 and a breakdown in communications with Mt Traore. Blina is considering its options. 



BLINA MINERALS NL 

AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES 

ABN 25 086 471 007 

ANNUAL REPORT 30 JUNE 2017 

P a g e | 3 

Review of operations 

3. Project Generation Work 

Blina has investigated many projects throughout the year for copper, gold, base metals, lithium and cobalt in Africa and 

the Americas. Exploration personnel have checked projects in the field but to date ǘƘŜ ǇǊƻƧŜŎǘǎ ƘŀǾŜ ƴƻǘ ƳŜǘ .ƭƛƴŀΩǎ 

exploration criteria. 

4. Diamond Project Rehabilitation 

Extensive environmental restoration was undertaken from March 2014, which involved the removal of the camp and 

plant. The tailings and waste dump from the mining activities was also rehabilitated and a monitoring programme put in 

place. Blina Minerals expects that the environmental bonds totalling $211,042 will be returned to the Company once 

rehabilitation shows it is trending towards completion. 

Competent Persons Statement 

The information in this report that relates to the Exploration Results is based on information compiled and fairly represented by 

Mr Robert Jewson, who is a Member of the Australian Institute of Geoscientists and a consultant to Blina Minerals NL. Mr 

Robert Jewson has sufficient experience relevant to the style of mineralisation and type of deposit under consideration, and to 

the activity which he has undertaken, to qualify as a Competent Person as defined in the 2012 Edition of the Joint Ore Reserves 

Committee (JORC) Australasian Code for Reporting of Exploration Results, Mineral Resources and Ore Reserves. Mr Robert 

Jewson consents to the inclusion in this report of the matters based on this information in the form and context in which it 

appears. 

For further information with respect to the Dingo GoƭŘ tǊƻƧŜŎǘ ŀŎǉǳƛǎƛǘƛƻƴ ǇƭŜŀǎŜ ǊŜŦŜǊ ǘƻ !{· !ƴƴƻǳƴŎŜƳŜƴǘ ά!Ŏǉǳƛǎƛǘƛƻƴ ƻŦ 

DinƎƻ DƻƭŘ tǊƻƧŜŎǘέ ǊŜƭŜŀǎŜŘ ƻƴ р May 2017. 
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Directorsõ report 

Your directors present their report on the consolidated entity, consisting of Blina Minerals NL (Blina or the Company) and its 
controlled entities (collectively the Group), for the financial year ended 30 June 2017. 

1. Directors 

The names of Directors in office at any time during or since the end of the year are: 

 Mr Brett Fraser Non-executive Chairman (Appointed 26 September 2008) 

 Mr David Porter Non-executive Director (Appointed 18 February 2014) 

 Mr Jay Stephenson  Non-executive Director (Appointed 25 October 2016) 

 Mr Justin Virgin Non-executive Director (Resigned 25 October 2016) 

(the Board) 

Directors have been in office since the start of the financial year to the date of this report unless otherwise stated. For 
additional information of Directors, including details of the qualifications of Directors, please refer to paragraph 5 Information 
relating to the directors of this Directors Report. 

2. Company secretary 

The following person held the position of Company Secretary at the end of the financial year: 

 Ms Julia Beckett   

Qualifications 4  Ms Beckett holds a Certificate in Governance Practice and Administration and is a 
Certificated Member of Chartered Secretaries Australia.  

Experience 4  Ms Beckett is a Corporate Governance professional, having worked in corporate 
administration and compliance for the past 8 years. She has been involved in business 
acquisitions, mergers, initial public offerings, capital raisings as well as statutory and 
financial reporting. Ms Beckett is also Company Secretary of Drake Resources Limited, 
European Metals Holdings Limited, Holista Colltech Limited (Joint), and Southern 
Hemisphere Mining Limited.  

3. Dividends paid or recommended 

There were no dividends paid or recommended during the financial year ended 30 June 2017. 

4. Operating and financial review 

4.1. Nature of operations principal activities 

The principal activity of the Group during the course of the financial year has been the evaluation of advanced cobalt, 
lithium and zinc projects across a broad range of geographies. All projects are subjected to a rigorous technical, 
commercial and legal due diligence. Rehabilitation within the Ellendale diamond field has now been completed, with only 
ongoing monitoring required over future periods. 

4.2. Operations review 

Refer to the Review of operations on page 1. 

4.3. Financial review 

The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis, which contemplates the continuity of normal 
business activity and the realisation of assets and the settlement of liabilities in the ordinary course of business. The 
Group incurred a loss for the year of $290,205 (2016: $720,673 loss). 

The net assets of the Group have increased by $38,275 from 30 June 2016 to $561,573 at 30 June 2017. 

As at 30 June 2017, the Group's cash and cash equivalents increased from 30 June 2016 by $32,199 to $534,262 and had 
working capital of $395,700 (2016: $338,556 working capital), as disclosed in note 14c of the Issued capital note on page 
34. 

Based on a cash flow forecast, the Group will require further funding to meet its forecast administration and exploration 
costs for a period of 15 months from the date of this report. Should the Group be unable to raise sufficient funds, the 
planned exploration program may have to be amended and administration costs reduced. The Board is confident in 
securing sufficient additional funding to fund the planned exploration program and other operating expenditure.  
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Directorsõ report 

The Directors consider the going concern basis of preparation to be appropriate based on forecast cash flows and 
confidence in raising additional funds. In the event that the Group is not successful in raising funds from the issue of new 
ŜǉǳƛǘȅΣ ǘƘŜǊŜ ŜȄƛǎǘǎ ƳŀǘŜǊƛŀƭ ǳƴŎŜǊǘŀƛƴǘȅ ǘƘŀǘ Ƴŀȅ Ŏŀǎǘ ǎƛƎƴƛŦƛŎŀƴǘ Řƻǳōǘ ƻƴ ǘƘŜ DǊƻǳǇΩǎ ŀōƛƭƛǘȅ ǘƻ ŎƻƴǘƛƴǳŜ ŀǎ ŀ Ǝƻƛng 
concern and realise its assets and extinguish its liabilities in the normal course of business and at the amounts stated in 
the financial report. 

4.4. Significant changes in the state of affairs 

There were no significant changes to the state of affairs of the Group. 

4.5. Events subsequent to reporting date 

There are no significant after balance date events that are not covered in this Directors' Report section 4.2 Operations 
review above or within the financial statements at Note 20 Events Subsequent To Reporting Date on page 37. 

4.6. Future developments, prospects and business strategies 

Likely developments, future prospects and business strategies of the operations of the Group and the expected results of 
those operations have not been included in this report as the Directors believe that the inclusion of such information 
would be likely to result in unreasonable prejudice to the Group. 

4.7. Environmental regulations 

¢ƘŜ DǊƻǳǇΩǎ ƻǇŜǊŀǘƛƻƴǎ ŀǊŜ ǎǳōƧŜŎǘ ǘƻ ǎƛƎƴƛŦƛŎŀƴǘ ŜƴǾƛǊƻƴƳŜƴǘŀƭ ǊŜƎǳƭŀǘƛƻƴǎ ƛƴ ǘƘŜ ƧǳǊƛǎŘƛŎǘƛƻƴǎ ƛǘ ƻǇŜǊŀǘŜǎ ƛƴΣ ƴŀƳŜƭȅ 
Australia and Burkina Faso. 

The Group is committed to achieving a high standard of environmental performance. The Board is responsible for the 
regular monitoring of environmental exposures and compliance with environmental regulations. 

The Board believes that the Group has adequate systems in place for the management of its environmental requirements 
and is not aware of any breach of those environmental requirements as they apply to the Group. 

5. Information relating to the directors 

 Mr Brett Fraser 4  Chairman (Non-Executive) 

Qualifications 4  FCPA, F.Fin, B.Bus. 

Experience 4  Mr Fraser has worked in ǘƘŜ ŦƛƴŀƴŎŜ ŀƴŘ ǎŜŎǳǊƛǘƛŜǎ ƛƴŘǳǎǘǊȅ ŦƻǊ ƻǾŜǊ нр ȅŜŀǊǎΩ ŀƴŘ Ƙŀǎ 
owned and operated businesses across wine, health, finance, media and mining. 

In addition, Mr Fraser is a Fellow of Certified Practicing Accountants; Fellow of the 
Financial Services Institute of Australasia; Grad Dip Finance, Securities Institute of 
Australia; Bachelor of Business (Accounting); International Marketing Institute - AGSM 
Sydney. 

Interest in Shares and Options 4  33,691,667 ordinary Shares in Blina Minerals NL. 

Directorships held in other 
listed entities 

4  Non-Executive Director of Aura Energy Limited since August 2005. Mr Fraser is also a 
former director of Drake Resources Limited. 

   

 Mr David Porter 4  Director (Executive) 

Qualifications 4  BSc (Hons), MSc, FAusIMM 

Experience 4  Mr Porter is a professional geologist and Fellow of the Australasian Institute of Mining and 
Metallurgy with over 40 years experiences in the mining industry, including most facets of 
exploration and mining. For the past 15 years he has focussed his activities in Africa and 
was the founding Chairman of Cam Iron SA and Congo Iron SA, both part of the Mbalam 
Iron Project of Sundance Resources Ltd. The project has a planned output of 35 million 
tonnes per annum of high grade iron ore and is at development stage which involves 
capital expenditure of $4.7 billion. He was also instrumental in the development of two 
coal projects in the Waterberg region of South Africa which are at development stage. 
tǊƛƻǊ ǘƻ aǊ tƻǊǘŜǊΩǎ ǇǊƻƧŜŎǘ ƎŜƴŜǊŀǘƛƻƴ ŀŎǘƛǾƛǘƛŜǎ ƛƴ !ŦǊƛŎŀ ƘŜ ǿas managing director of 
three ASX-listed exploration companies, all of which developed gold and base metal 
projects. In Diversified Mineral Resources Limited he supervised the resource definition at 
ǘƘŜ !Ǝōŀƻǳ ƎƻƭŘ ŘŜǇƻǎƛǘ ƛƴ /ƻǘŜ ŘΩLǾƻƛǊŜ ƛƴǘƻ Ǉƭǳǎ ƻƴŜ Ƴƛllion ounces of gold. Africwest 
Gold Limited acquired the nickel deposits at Kambalda and developed into a leading 
Australian nickel producer while Golden Rim Resources Limited is now developing gold 
resources in Burkina Faso. 



BLINA MINERALS NL 

AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES 

ABN 25 086 471 007 

ANNUAL REPORT 30 JUNE 2017 

P a g e | 6 

Directorsõ report 

  Mr Porter was an executive director and exploration manager of Gasgoyne Gold Mines NL 
from 1989 until 1996, and managed the Yilgarn Star feasibility study in 1990/1991. 
Gasgoyne Gold Mines NL produced over 100,000 ounces of gold per year from the Yilgarn 
Star Mine until it was taken over in 1996 by Sons of Gwalia Ltd in a A$180 million 
transaction. In the period from 1971 to 1989, Mr Porter worked for many international 
mining companies, with small ASX-listed companies and as an independent consultant on 
gold, base metal, iron ore and coal projects. 

Interest in Shares and Options 4  282,781,250 ordinary Shares in Blina Minerals NL. 

Directorships held in other 
listed entities 

4  Sundance Resources Ltd (Chairman, 12/2016 to present) 

 
   

 Mr Jay Stephenson 4  Director (Non-Executive) 

Qualifications 4  MBA, FCPA, CMA, FCIS, MAICD 

Experience 4  Mr Stephenson has been involved in business development for over 25 years, including 
approximately 21 years as Director, Chief Executive Officer, and Company Secretary of 
various listed and unlisted entities in resources, manufacturing, wine, hotels and property. 
He has been involved in business acquisitions, mergers, initial public offerings, capital 
raisings, and business restructuring, as well as managing all areas of finance for companies. 

Interest in Shares and Options 4  33,691,666 ordinary Shares in Blina Minerals NL. 

Directorships held in other 
listed entities 

4  Mr Stephenson also holds or has held the following directorships over the past three 
years: Non-Executive Director of Doray Mining Limited since August 2009 and Nickelore 
Limited since July 2011. Chairman, Non-Executive Director of Yonder and Beyond Group 
Limited since February 2011. Non-Executive Director of Blina Minerals Limited since 
October 2016. In the past three years, Mr Stephenson has been a Non-Executive Director 
of Veriluma Limited (Parmelia Resources Limited) - May 2014 to October 2016, Bubs 
Australia Limited (Hillcrest Litigation Services Limited) September 2015 to December 2016, 
and Condor Blanco Mines Limited (July 2016 to October 2016). 

   

 Mr Justin Virgin 4  Director (Non-Executive) 

Qualifications 4  MBA 

Experience 4  Mr Virgin has over nine ȅŜŀǊǎΩ ŜȄǇŜǊƛŜƴŎŜ ƛƴ ǘƘŜ ŦƛƴŀƴŎƛŀƭ ǎŜǊǾƛŎŜǎ ƛƴŘǳǎǘǊȅ ǿƛǘƘ ŜȄǇŜǊǘƛǎŜ 
in providing a wide range of financial services which includes capital raisings, providing 
general corporate advice, participating in the promotion of small cap companies and other 
investment advice involved in mergers, acquisitions and valuation for sale of small to 
medium enterprises.  

Interest in Shares and Options 4  88,505,669* Shares in Blina Minerals NL. *As at date of resignation 

Directorships held in other 
listed entities 

4  Mr Virgin is an executive director of Terrain Minerals Limited. 

   



BLINA MINERALS NL 

AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES 

ABN 25 086 471 007 

ANNUAL REPORT 30 JUNE 2017 

P a g e | 7 

Directorsõ report 

6. Meetings of directors and committees  

During the financial year three meeting of Directors (including committees of Directors) were held. Attendances by each 
Director during the year are stated in the following table. 
 

 DIRECTORSô  

MEETINGS 

AUDIT  

COMMITTEE 

NOMINATION  

COMMITTEE 

REMUNERATION  

COMMITTEE 

FINANCE AND 
OPERATIONS 
COMMITTEE 

 Number 
eligible to 

attend 
Number 
Attended 

Number 
eligible to  

attend 
Number 
Attended 

Number 
eligible to  

attend 
Number 
Attended 

Number 
eligible to  

attend  
Number 
Attended 

Number 
eligible to  

attend  
Number 
Attended 

Brett Fraser 3 3 
At the date of this report, the Remuneration, Audit, Nomination, and Finance and Operations 

Committees comprise the full Board of Directors. The Directors believe the Company is not currently of 

a size nor are its affairs of such complexity as to warrant the establishment of these separate 

committees. Accordingly, all matters capable of delegation to such committees are considered by the 

full Board of Directors. 

David Porter 3 3 

Jay Stephenson 3 3 

Justin Virgin - N/A 

   

7. Indemnifying officers or auditor 

7.1. Indemnification 

The Company indemnifies each of its Directors, officers and company secretary to the maximum extent permitted by the 
Corporations Act 2001 from liability to third parties, except where the liability arises out of conduct involving lack of good 
faith, and in defending legal and administrative proceedings and applications for such proceedings. 

The Company must use its best endeavours to insure a director or officer against any liability, which does not arise out of 
conduct constituting a wilful breach of duty or a contravention of the Corporations Act 2001. The Company must also use 
its best endeavours to insure a Director or officer against liability for costs and expenses incurred in defending 
proceedings whether civil or criminal. 

The Company has not entered into any agreement with its current auditors indemnifying them against any claims by third 
parties arising from their report on the financial report. 

7.2. Insurance premiums 

During the year the Company paid insurance premiums to insure directors and officers against certain liabilities arising 
out of their conduct while acting as an officer of the Group. Under the terms and conditions of the insurance contract, 
the nature of the liabilities insured against and the premium paid cannot be disclosed. 

8. Options 

8.1. Unissued shares under option 

At the date of this report, the unissued ordinary shares of Blina Minerals NL under option (listed and unlisted) are as 
follows: 

 Grant Date Date of Expiry Exercise Price Number under 
Option 

 

 24 December 2015 23 December 2017 $0.0017 295,666,667  

 25 November 2015 31 October 2020 $0.0017 120,000,000  

 7 June 2017 31 October 2020 $0.0017 175,000,000  

 7 June 2017 31 October 2020 $0.0017 60,000,000  

    650,666,667  

There are no participation rights or entitlements inherent in the Options and holders will not be entitled to participate in 
new issues of capital offered to Shareholders during the currency of the Options without exercising the Options. 
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8.2. Shares issued on exercise of options 

No ordinary shares were issued by the Company as a result of the exercise of options during or since the end of the 
financial year. 

9. Non-audit services 

5ǳǊƛƴƎ ǘƘŜ ȅŜŀǊΣ bŜȄƛŀ tŜǊǘƘ !ǳŘƛǘ {ŜǊǾƛŎŜǎ tǘȅ [ǘŘ όbŜȄƛŀ tŜǊǘƘύΣ ǘƘŜ /ƻƳǇŀƴȅΩǎ ŀǳŘƛǘƻǊΣ ŘƛŘ ƴƻǘ ǇŜǊŦƻǊƳ ŀƴȅ ǎŜǊǾƛces other 
than their statutory audits. Details of remuneration paid to the auditor can be found within the financial statements at Note 5 
!ǳŘƛǘƻǊΩǎ Remuneration on page 29. 

In the event that non-audit services are provided by Nexia Perth, the Board has established certain procedures to ensure that 
the provision of non-audit services are compatible with, and do not compromise, the auditor independence requirements of 
the Corporations Act 2001. These procedures include: 

 non-audit services will be subject to the corporate governance procedures adopted by the Company and will be reviewed 
by the Board to ensure they do not impact the integrity and objectivity of the auditor; and 

 ensuring non-ŀǳŘƛǘ ǎŜǊǾƛŎŜǎ Řƻ ƴƻǘ ƛƴǾƻƭǾŜ ǊŜǾƛŜǿƛƴƎ ƻǊ ŀǳŘƛǘƛƴƎ ǘƘŜ ŀǳŘƛǘƻǊΩǎ ƻǿƴ ǿƻǊƪΣ ŀŎǘƛƴƎ ƛƴ ŀ ƳŀƴŀƎŜƳŜƴǘ ƻǊ 
decision making capacity for the Company, acting as an advocate for the Company or jointly sharing risks and rewards. 

10. Proceedings on behalf of company 

No person has applied for leave of Court to bring proceedings on behalf of the Company or intervene in any proceedings to 
which the Company is a party for the purpose of taking responsibility on behalf of the Company for all or any part of those 
proceedings. 

The Company was not a party to any such proceedings during the year. 

11. Auditorõs independence declaration 

¢ƘŜ ƭŜŀŘ ŀǳŘƛǘƻǊΩǎ ƛƴŘŜǇŜƴŘŜƴŎŜ ŘŜŎƭŀǊŀǘƛƻƴ ǳƴŘŜǊ ǎŜŎǘƛƻƴ олт/ ƻŦ ǘƘŜ Corporations Act 2001 (Cth) for the year ended  
30 June 2017 has been received and can be found on page 13 of the annual report. 

12. Remuneration report (audited) 

12.1. Principles of compensation 

Remuneration is referred to as compensation throughout this report. 

Key Management Personnel (KMP) have authority and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities 
of the Group. KMP comprise the directors of the Company. 

Compensation levels for KMP are competitively set to attract and retain appropriately qualified and experienced directors 
and executives. The Board may seek independent advice on the appropriateness of compensation packages, given trends 
ƛƴ ŎƻƳǇŀǊŀǘƛǾŜ ŎƻƳǇŀƴƛŜǎ ōƻǘƘ ƭƻŎŀƭƭȅ ŀƴŘ ƛƴǘŜǊƴŀǘƛƻƴŀƭƭȅ ŀƴŘ ǘƘŜ ƻōƧŜŎǘƛǾŜǎ ƻŦ ǘƘŜ DǊƻǳǇΩǎ ŎƻƳǇŜƴǎŀǘƛƻƴ ǎǘǊŀǘŜƎȅΦ 

The compensation structures are designed to attract suitably qualified candidates, reward the achievement of strategic 
objectives, and achieve the broader outcome of creation of value for shareholders. Compensation packages include a mix 
of fixed compensation, equity-based compensation, as well as employer contributions to superannuation funds. 

Shares and options may only be issued to directors subject to approval by shareholders in a general meeting. 

The Board has no established retirement or redundancy schemes. 

a. Fixed Remuneration  

Fixed compensation consists of base compensation as well as employer contributions to superannuation funds. 
Compensation levels are reviewed annually by the Board through a process that considers individual and overall 
performance of thŜ DǊƻǳǇΦ Lƴ ŀŘŘƛǘƛƻƴΣ ŜȄǘŜǊƴŀƭ Ŏƻƴǎǳƭǘŀƴǘǎ ǇǊƻǾƛŘŜ ŀƴŀƭȅǎƛǎ ŀƴŘ ŀŘǾƛŎŜ ǘƻ ŜƴǎǳǊŜ ǘƘŜ ŘƛǊŜŎǘƻǊǎΩ ŀƴŘ 
ǎŜƴƛƻǊ ŜȄŜŎǳǘƛǾŜǎΩ ŎƻƳǇŜƴǎŀǘƛƻƴ ƛǎ ŎƻƳǇŜǘƛǘƛǾŜ ƛƴ ǘƘŜ ƳŀǊƪŜǘ ǇƭŀŎŜΦ 5ǳǊƛƴƎ ǘƘŜ ǇŜǊƛƻŘ ƴƻ ǎǳŎƘ Ŏƻƴǎǳƭǘŀƴǘ ǿŀǎ ǳǎŜŘ ŀƴŘ 
ƴƻ ǎŜƴƛƻǊ ŜȄŜŎǳǘƛǾŜΩǎ ƻǘƘŜǊ ǘƘŀƴ ŘƛǊŜŎtors were employed.  
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b. Performance Based Remuneration ï Short-term and long-term incentive structure 

Given the current size, nature and opportunities of the Group, the Board has given more significance to service criteria 
instead of ƳŀǊƪŜǘ ǊŜƭŀǘŜŘ ŎǊƛǘŜǊƛŀ ƛƴ ǎŜǘǘƛƴƎ ǘƘŜ DǊƻǳǇΩǎ ƛƴŎŜƴǘƛǾŜ ǎŎƘŜƳŜǎΦ !ŎŎƻǊŘƛƴƎƭȅΣ ŀǘ ǘƘƛǎ ǎǘŀƎŜ ǘƘŜ .ƻŀǊŘ ŘƻŜǎ ƴƻǘ 
ŎƻƴǎƛŘŜǊ ǘƘŜ DǊƻǳǇΩǎ ŜŀǊƴƛƴƎǎ ƻǊ ŜŀǊƴƛƴƎǎ ǊŜƭŀǘŜŘ ƳŜŀǎǳǊŜǎ ǘƻ ōŜ ŀƴ ŀǇǇǊƻǇǊƛŀǘŜ ƪŜȅ ǇŜǊŦƻǊƳŀƴŎŜ ƛƴŘƛŎŀǘƻǊ όYtLύΦ Lƴ 
considering the relationship ōŜǘǿŜŜƴ ǘƘŜ DǊƻǳǇΩǎ ǊŜƳǳƴŜǊŀǘƛƻƴ ǇƻƭƛŎȅ ŀƴŘ ǘƘŜ ŎƻƴǎŜǉǳŜƴŎŜǎ ŦƻǊ ǘƘŜ /ƻƳǇŀƴȅΩǎ 
shareholder wealth, changes in share price are analysed as well as measures such as successful completion of exploration 
activities (for example, completion of exploration programs within budgeted timeframes and costs), development 
activities (for example, completion of scoping and/or feasibilities studies), corporate activities (for example, recruitment 
of key personnel/contractors) and business development activities (for example, project acquisitions and capital raisings).  

 Short-term incentives 

No short-term incentives in the form of cash bonuses were granted during the year.  

 Long-term incentives 

The Board has a policy of granting incentive options to executives with exercise prices above market share price. As 
such, incentive options granted to executives will generally only be of benefit if the executives perform to the level 
whereby the value of the Group increases sufficiently to warrant exercising the incentive options granted.  

¢ƘŜ ŘƛǊŜŎǘƻǊǎ ƻŦ ǘƘŜ /ƻƳǇŀƴȅ ŀǊŜ ƴƻǘ ŜƭƛƎƛōƭŜ ǘƻ ǇŀǊǘƛŎƛǇŀǘŜ ƛƴ ǘƘŜ ά.ƭƛƴŀ aƛƴŜǊŀƭǎ b[ 9ƳǇƭƻȅŜŜ LƴŎŜƴǘƛǾŜ hǇǘƛƻƴ 
tƭŀƴέ ŀŘƻǇǘŜŘ ōȅ ǘƘŜ .ƻŀǊŘ ŀƴŘ ŀǇǇǊƻǾŜŘ ōȅ ǎƘŀǊŜƘƻƭŘŜǊǎ on 16 March 2011. 

c. Service Contracts 

Compensation and other terms of employment for the directors, KMP and the company secretary are formalised in 
contracts of employment. 

d. Non-executive Directors 

Total compensation for all non-executive directors are set based on advice from external advisors with reference to fees 
paid to other non-executive directors of comparable companies. Non-ŜȄŜŎǳǘƛǾŜ ŘƛǊŜŎǘƻǊǎΩ ŦŜŜǎ ŀǊŜ ǇǊŜǎŜƴǘƭȅ ƭƛƳƛǘŜŘ ǘƻ ŀƴ 
aggregate of $250,000 per annum. 

Non-executive directors do not receive performance ǊŜƭŀǘŜŘ ŎƻƳǇŜƴǎŀǘƛƻƴΦ 5ƛǊŜŎǘƻǊǎΩ ŦŜŜǎ ŎƻǾŜǊ ŀƭƭ Ƴŀƛƴ .ƻŀǊŘ ŀŎǘƛǾƛǘƛŜǎ 
and membership of any committee. The Board has no established retirement or redundancy schemes in relation to non-
executive directors. 

Fees for the Non-executive directors for the financial year were $89,766 (2016: $78,800) and cover main Board activities 
only. Non-executive directors may receive additional remuneration for other services provided to the Group. 

e. Engagement of Remuneration Consultants  

During the financial year, the Company did not engage any remuneration consultants. 

f. Relationship between Remuneration of Key Management Personnel and Shareholder Wealth 

5ǳǊƛƴƎ ǘƘŜ DǊƻǳǇΩǎ ŜȄǇƭƻǊŀǘƛƻƴ ŀƴŘ ŘŜǾŜƭƻǇƳŜƴǘ ǇƘŀǎŜǎ ƻŦ ƛǘǎ ōǳǎƛƴŜǎǎΣ ǘƘŜ .ƻŀǊŘ ŀƴǘƛŎƛǇŀǘŜǎ ǘƘŀǘ ǘƘŜ /ƻƳǇŀƴȅ ǿƛƭƭ 
retain earnings (if any) and other cash resources for the exploration and development of its resource projects. 
Accordingly, the Company does not currently have a policy with respect to the payment of dividends and returns of 
ŎŀǇƛǘŀƭΦ ¢ƘŜǊŜŦƻǊŜΣ ǘƘŜǊŜ ǿŀǎ ƴƻ ǊŜƭŀǘƛƻƴǎƘƛǇ ōŜǘǿŜŜƴ ǘƘŜ .ƻŀǊŘΩǎ ǇƻƭƛŎȅ ŦƻǊ ŘŜǘŜǊƳƛƴƛƴƎΣ ƻǊ ƛƴ ǊŜƭŀǘƛƻƴ ǘƻΣ ǘƘŜ ƴŀǘǳǊŜ 
during the current and previous financial years.  

The Board did not determine the nature and amount of remuneration of the KMP by reference to changes in the price at 
which shares in the Company traded between the beginning and end of the current and previous financial years. 
However, where the Directors of the Company receive incentive options, such options generally would only be of value if 
ǘƘŜ /ƻƳǇŀƴȅΩǎ ǎƘŀǊŜ ǇǊƛŎŜ ƛƴŎǊŜŀǎŜŘ ǎǳŦŦƛŎƛŜƴǘƭȅ ǘƻ ǿŀǊǊŀƴǘ ŜȄŜǊŎƛǎƛƴƎ ǘƘŜ ƛƴŎŜƴǘƛǾŜ ƻǇǘƛƻƴǎΦ  

g. Relationship between Remuneration of Key Management Personnel and Earnings 

As discussed above, the Group is currently undertaking exploration activities and does not expect to be undertaking 
profitable operations (other than by way of material asset sales, none of which is currently planned) until sometime after 
the successful commercialisation, production and sales of commodities from its projects. Accordingly, the Board does not 
consider earnings during the current and previous financial years when determining the nature and amount of 
remuneration of KMP.  
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12.2. Remuneration details for the year ended 30 June 2017 

There were no cash bonuses paid during the year and there are no set performance criteria for achieving cash bonuses. 
 
The following table of benefits and payment details, in respect to the financial year, the components of remuneration for each 
member of the KMP of the Group: 
 

2017 

 

Group Key  

Management  

Person 

Short-term benefits Post-  

employment  

benefits 

Long-term  

benefits 

Equity-settled share- 

based payments 

Total 

Salary, fees 

and leave 
Profit share 

and bonuses 

Non-monetary Other Super- 

annuation 

Other Equity Options 

$ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ 

Brett Fraser(1)(3) 48,333 - - 20,000 4,592 - - - 72,925 

David Porter(2)
  95,000 - - - - - - - 95,000 

Jay Stephenson(4) 22,991 - - - 2,184 - - - 25,175 

Justin Virgin(5) 10,654 - - - 1,012 - - - 11,666 

 176,978 - - 20,000 7,788 - - - 204,766 

 
 

2016 

Group Key  

Management  

Person 

Short-term benefits Post-  

employment  

benefits 

Long-term  

benefits 

Equity-settled share- 

based payments 

Total 

Salary, fees 

and leave 

Profit share 

and bonuses 

Non-monetary Other Super- 

annuation 

Other Equity Options  

$ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ 

Brett Fraser(1)  40,000 - - - 3,800 - - 33,886 77,686 

David Porter(2)  121,326 - - - - - - 33,887 155,213 

Justin Virgin 31,964 - - - 3,036 - - 33,887 68,887 

 193,290 - - - 6,836 - - 101,660 301,786 

(1)
 Wolfstar Group Pty Ltd, a company jointly controlled by Mr Fraser, provides financial services and Company Secretarial services to Blina 

Minerals NL. These services are provided indirectly by Mr Fraser and have therefore not been included in remuneration. Please refer to 

Note 19 Related Party Transactions on page 37 for further details. 
(2)

 Mr Porter received consultancy fees of $95,000 for the 2017 financial year (2016: $121,326) of which $5,000 has been accrued as at 30 

June 2017. Mr Porter has $28,973 in consultancy fees that remain unpaid as at 30 June 2017 (2016: $28,973). 
(3)

 Mr Fraser rendered executive services during the 2017 financial year to the value of $20,000. This amount has been accrued as at 30 

June 2017. 
(4)

 Mr Stephenson was appointed as a non-executive director on 25 October 2016.  
(5)

 Mr Virgin resigned as a director on 25 October 2016. 
 

12.3. Service agreements 
Mr Porter was employed a under a deed of employment as an executive director, effective 18 February 2014 until 20 
February 2017. Mr Porter was not entitled to fees in this capacity. Instead, the Company continued to pay exploration 
consultancy fees to Metallica Investments Pty Ltd, a company controlled by Mr Porter, pursuant to a consultancy 
agreement dated 15 August 2012. 

Under the consultancy agreement, effective 20 August 2012, Mr Porter was to provide consultancy services to the 
Company. In consideration for the services provided by the consultant, the Company paid the consultant a fee of 
$10,000 per month.  

On 20 February 2017 the deed was superseded by Board resolution whereby Mr Porter will receive gross fees of $5,000 
per month. 
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12. Remuneration report (audited) 
 

12.4. Share-based compensation 

a. Key Management Personnel Options  

Options have been previously granted to KMP to provide a market-linked incentive package in their capacity as KMP and 
for future performance by them in their roles. The KMP options vested immediately after the issue date. No options 
were issued in 2017. 

The value of options granted as remuneration is determined in accordance with applicable valuation models and 
accounting standards. 

¢ƘŜ ŘƻƭƭŀǊ ǾŀƭǳŜ ƻŦ ǘƘŜ ǇŜǊŎŜƴǘŀƎŜ ǾŜǎǘŜŘ ŘǳǊƛƴƎ ǘƘŜ ǇŜǊƛƻŘ Ƙŀǎ ōŜŜƴ ǊŜŦƭŜŎǘŜŘ ƛƴ ǘƘŜ 5ƛǊŜŎǘƻǊǎΩ ŀƴŘ ŜȄŜŎǳǘƛǾŜ ƻŦŦƛŎŜǊǎΩ 
remuneration tables.  

All options were issued by Blina Minerals NL and entitle the holder to one ordinary share in Blina Minerals NL for each 
option exercised. 

b. Securities Received that are not performance-related 

No members of KMP are entitled to receive securities that are not performance-based as part of their remuneration 
package. 

c. Options and Rights Granted as Remuneration 

No options were granted as remuneration during 2017 (2016: 120,000,000). 
 
 
 

12.5. Key management personnel equity holdings 

a. Fully paid ordinary shares of Blina Minerals NL held by each Key Management Personnel 

2017 

 

Group Key Management Person 
Balance at 

start of year 

No. 

Received during 

the year as 

compensation 

No.  

Received during 

the year on the 

exercise of options 

No. 

Other changes 

 during the year(2)  

No. 

Balance at  

end of year 

No. 

Brett Fraser 33,691,667 - - - 33,691,667 

David Porter 282,781,250 - - - 282,781,250 

Jay Stephenson - - - 33,691,666 33,691,666 

Justin Virgin 88,505,669 - - (88,505,669) - 

 404,978,586 - - (54,814,003) 350,164,583 

(1)
 Other changes during the year represent the number of shares held by Mr Stephenson at the date of his appointment as a non-executive 

director on 25 October 2016, and the number of shares held by Mr Virgin at the date of his resignation as a director on 25 October 2016. 

 

2016 

 

Group Key Management Person 

Balance at 

start of year 

No. 

Received during 

the year as 

compensation 

No.(3) 

Received during 

the year on the 

exercise of options 

No. 

Other changes 

 during the year(2)  

No. 

Balance at  

end of year 

No. 

Brett Fraser 19,212,500 28,958,334 - (14,479,167) 33,691,667 

David Porter 242,281,250 - - 40,500,000 282,781,250 

Justin Virgin 70,138,349 18,367,320 - - 88,505,669 

 331,632,099 47,325,654 - 26,020,833 404,978,586 

(2)
 Other changes during the year relate to shares purchased, sold on market, or off-market transfers to unrelated third parties. 

(3)
 Represents fully paid ordinary shares ƛǎǎǳŜŘ ŀǘ ϷлΦллм ǇŜǊ ǎƘŀǊŜ ƛƴ ƭƛŜǳ ƻŦ ŀŎŎǊǳŜŘ ŘƛǊŜŎǘƻǊΩǎ ŦŜŜǎ ŀƴŘ Ŏƻƴǎǳƭǘŀƴǘǎ ŦŜŜǎΦ 
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12. Remuneration report (audited) 

 

b. Options in Blina Minerals NL held by each Key Management Personnel 

2017 

Group Key 

Management Person 

Balance at 

start of year 

No. 

Granted as 

Remuneration 

during the year 

No. 

Exercised 

during the year 

No. 

Other changes 

during the year 

No. 

Balance at 

end of year 

No. 

Vested and 

Exercisable 

No. 

Not Vested 

No. 

Brett Fraser 40,000,000 - - - 40,000,000 40,000,000 - 

David Porter 40,000,000 - - - 40,000,000 40,000,000 - 

Jay Stephenson - - - - - - - 

Justin Virgin 40,000,000 - - (40,000,000) - - - 

 120,000,000 - - (40,000,000) 80,000,000 80,000,000 - 

(1)
 Other changes during the year represent the number of options held by Mr Virgin at the date of his resignation as a director on  

25 October 2016. 
 

 

 

 
2016 

 

Group Key Management 

Person 

Balance at 

start of year 

No. 

Granted as 

Remuneration 

during the year 

No. 

Exercised 

during the year 

No. 

Other changes 

during the year 

No. 

Balance at 

end of year 

No. 

Vested and 

Exercisable 

No. 

Not Vested 

No. 

Brett Fraser - - - 40,000,000 40,000,000 40,000,000 - 

David Porter - - - 40,000,000 40,000,000 40,000,000 - 

Justin Virgin - - - 40,000,000 40,000,000 40,000,000 - 

 - - - 120,000,000 120,000,000 120,000,000 - 

 

12.6. Other equity-related KMP transactions 

There have been no other transactions involving equity instruments other than those described in the tables above 
relating to options, rights and shareholdings. 

12.7. Loans to key management personnel 

There are no loans made to directors of Blina Minerals NL as at 30 June 2017 (2016: nil). 

12.8. Other transactions with key management personnel and or their related parties 

There have been no other transactions involving equity instruments other than those described in the tables above.  
For details of other transactions with KMP, refer Note 19 Related party transactions on page 37. 

END OF REMUNERATION REPORT 

 

This Report of the Directors, incorporating the Remuneration Report, is signed in accordance with a resolution of directors 
made pursuant to s.298(2) of the Corporations Act 2001 (Cth). 

 

 

 

 

BRETT FRASER 

Chairman 

Dated this Tuesday, 19 September 2017 
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TO BE REPLACED BY AUDITORS 

Auditor’s independence declaration  
UNDER SECTION 307C OF THE CORPORATIONS ACT 2001 (CTH) 

TO THE DIRECTORS OF BLINA MINERALS NL 

 

I declare that, to the best of my knowledge and belief, during the year ended 30 June 2017 there have been: 

 

i. No contraventions of the auditor independence requirements as set out in the Corporations Act 2001 in relation to 
the audit; and 

 

ii. No contraventions of any applicable code of professional conduct in relation to the audit. 

 

 

 

(insert date) 
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Consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income  
for the year ended 30 June 2017 
   

 
Note 2017 

$ 

2016 

$ 

Operating activities    

Other income 3 175,000 - 

  175,000 - 

Business development  (123,918) (268,680) 

Compliance and regulatory costs  (134,705) (163,202) 

Employee benefits  (114,856) (180,470) 

Exploration and evaluation 4a (48,387) (80,415) 

Rehabilitation (expense) / over-provision 13b 54,714 - 

Funds garnished by Congolese Government 8 (30,773) - 

Legal and consulting fees  (38,410) (8,726) 

Other expenses   (34,192) (24,370) 

Profit / (loss) from operating activities  (295,527) (725,863) 

Financial income 4b 5,606 8,902 

Finance expense 4b ( 284) (3,712) 

Net financing income/(expense)  5,322 5,190 

Profit / (loss) before tax  (290,205) (720,673) 

Income tax  6a - - 

Profit / (loss) from continuing operations  (290,205) (720,673) 

Other comprehensive income, net of income tax    

 Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss:    

Foreign currency movement  (1,020) (1,886) 

Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax  (1,020) (1,886) 

Total comprehensive income attributable to members of the parent entity  (291,225) (722,559) 

Profit/(loss) for the period attributable to:    

 Non-controlling interest  (3,094) (17) 

 Owners of the parent  (287,111) (720,656) 

Total comprehensive income attributable to:    

 Non-controlling interest  (3,094) (608) 

 Owners of the parent  (288,131) (721,951) 

Earnings per share:    

Basic and diluted (cents per share) 7c (0.011) (0.034) 

    

The consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income is to be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes. 
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Consolidated statement of financial position 
as at 30 June 2017 
 

 Note 2017 

 $ 

2016 

 $ 

Current assets    

Cash and cash equivalents 8 534,262 502,063 

Trade and other receivables 9 6,617 13,037 

Prepayments 10 10,831 14,630 

Total current assets  551,710 529,730 

Non-current assets    

Trade and other receivables 9 211,042 247,000 

Total non-current assets  211,042 247,000 

Total assets  762,752 776,730 

Current liabilities    

Trade and other payables 11 108,195 109,893 

Short-term provisions 13 28,000 66,651 

Borrowings 12 8,984 - 

Total current liabilities  145,179 176,544 

Non-current liabilities    

Long-term provisions 13 56,000 76,888 

Total non-current liabilities  56,000 76,888 

Total liabilities  201,179  253,432 

Net assets  561,573 523,298 

Equity    

Issued capital 14 34,142,427 33,854,887 

Reserves 15 147,034 106,512 

Accumulated losses  (33,725,434) (33,438,741) 

Non-controlling interest  (2,454)  640 

Total equity  561,573 523,298 

The consolidated statement of financial position is to be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.  
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Consolidated statement of changes in equity 
for the year ended 30 June 2017 
 

 Note 

Issued 

Capital 

 

Accumulated 

Losses 

Foreign 

Exchange 

Translation 

Reserve 

 

Options 

Reserve 

Non- 

controlling 

Interest  

 

Total 

  $ $ $ $ $ $ 

Balance at 1 July 2015  32,940,458 (32,718,085) 5,729 418 1,248 229,768 

Loss for the year   - (720,656) - - (17) (720,673) 

Other comprehensive income for the year   - - (1,295) - ( 591) (1,886) 

Total comprehensive income for the year   - (720,656) (1,295) - ( 608) (722,559) 

Transaction with owners, directly in equity         

Shares issued during the year   934,325 - - - - 934,325 

Transaction costs  (19,896) - - - - (19,896) 

Options issued during the year  - - - 101,660 - 101,660 

Balance at 30 June 2016  33,854,887 (33,438,741) 4,434 102,078  640 523,298 

        

Balance at 1 July 2016  33,854,887 (33,438,741) 4,434 102,078  640 523,298 

Loss for the year   - (287,111) - - (3,094) (290,205) 

Other comprehensive income for the year   - - (1,020) - - (1,020) 

Total comprehensive income for the year   - (287,111) (1,020) - (3,094) (291,225) 

Transaction with owners, directly in equity         

Shares issued during the year   350,000 - - - - 350,000 

Transaction costs  (62,460) - - - - (62,460) 

Options expired during the year  - 418 - (418) - - 

Options issued during the year  - - - 41,960 - 41,960 

Balance at 30 June 2017  34,142,427 (33,725,434) 3,414 143,620 (2,454) 561,573 

The consolidated statement of changes in equity is to be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.  
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Consolidated statement of cash flows 
for the year ended 30 June 2017 
 

 
Note 2017 

 $ 

2016 

 $ 

Cash flows from operating activities    

Receipts from customers  175,000 - 

Payments for care and maintenance  - (12,409) 

Payments for exploration expenditure  (18,132) (80,415) 

Funds garnished by Congolese Government  (30,773) - 

Payments to suppliers and employees  (463,698) (612,707) 

Cash flows used in operations  (337,603) (705,531) 

Interest received  5,606 8,902 

Interest and borrowing costs  (284) (822) 

Net cash used in operating activities 8a (332,281) (697,451) 

Cash flows from investing activities    

Release of environmental bonds held over rehabilitation properties  36,000 - 

Net cash from investing activities  36,000 - 

Cash flows from financing activities    

Proceeds from issue of shares   350,000 887,000 

Capital raising costs  (20,500) (19,896) 

Net cash provided by financing activities  329,500 867,104 

 

Net increase/(decrease) in cash held 
 

33,219 169,653 

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year  502,063 334,296 

Change in foreign currency held  (1,020) (1,886) 

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year -  8 534,262 502,063 

The consolidated statement of cash flows is to be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes. 

 

.  
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements 
for the year ended 30 June 2017 
 

Note  1 Statement of significant accounting policies 

These are the consolidated financial statements and notes of Blina Minerals NL (Blina or the Company) and controlled entities 
(collectively the Group). Blina is a company limited by shares, domiciled and incorporated in Australia. 

The separate financial statements of Blina, as the parent entity, have not been presented with this financial report as permitted 
by the Corporations Act 2001 (Cth). 

The financial statements were authorised for issue on 19 September 2017 by the directors of the Company. 

a. Basis of preparation 

The financial statements comprise the consolidated financial statements of the Group. For the purposes of preparing the 
consolidated financial statements, the Company is a for-profit entity. Material accounting policies adopted in the 
preparation of these financial statements are presented below. They have been consistently applied unless otherwise 
stated. 

i. Statement of compliance 

These financial statements are general purpose financial statements which have been prepared in accordance with 
Australian Accounting Standards and International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as issued by the International 
Accounting Standards Board (IASB), and the Corporations Act 2001 (Cth). 

ii. Going concern 

The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis, which contemplates the continuity of normal 
business activity and the realisation of assets and the settlement of liabilities in the ordinary course of business. 

The Group incurred a loss for the year of $290,205 (2016: $720,673 loss) and a net cash in-flow of $33,219 (2016: 
$169,653 in-flow). As at 30 June 2017, the Group had working capital of $395,700 (2016: $338,556 working capital) as 
disclosed in note 14c of the Issued capital note on page 34. 

Based on a cash flow forecast, the Group will require further funding to meet its forecast administration and 
exploration costs for a period of 15 months from the date of this report. Should the Group be unable to raise sufficient 
funds, the planned exploration program may have to be amended and administration costs reduced. The Board is 
confident in securing sufficient additional funding to fund the planned exploration program and other administration 
expenditure.  

The Directors consider the going concern basis of preparation to be appropriate based on forecast cash flows and 
confidence in raising additional funds. In the event that the Group is not successful in raising funds from the issue of 
ƴŜǿ ŜǉǳƛǘȅΣ ǘƘŜǊŜ ŜȄƛǎǘǎ ƳŀǘŜǊƛŀƭ ǳƴŎŜǊǘŀƛƴǘȅ ǘƘŀǘ Ƴŀȅ Ŏŀǎǘ ǎƛƎƴƛŦƛŎŀƴǘ Řƻǳōǘ ƻƴ ǘƘŜ DǊƻǳǇΩǎ ŀōƛƭƛǘȅ ǘƻ ŎƻƴǘƛƴǳŜ ŀǎ ŀ 
going concern and realise its assets and extinguish its liabilities in the normal course of business and at the amounts 
stated in the financial report. 

iii. Historical cost 

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on an accruals basis and are based on historical costs 
modified, where applicable, by the measurement at fair value of selected non-current assets, financial assets and 
financial liabilities. Historical cost is generally based on the fair values of the consideration given in exchange for goods 
and services. 

iv. Use of estimates and judgments 

The preparation of consolidated financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and 
assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported amounts of assets and liabilities, income and expenses. 
These estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various factors that are believed to 
be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making the judgements about carrying 
values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these 
estimates.  

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are 
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised and in any future periods affected. 

Judgements made by management in the application of AASBs that have significant effect on the consolidated financial 
statements and estimates with a significant risk of material adjustment in the next year are discussed in note 1n. 
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements 
for the year ended 30 June 2017 
 

Note  1 Statement of significant accounting policies 

v. Comparative figures 

Where required by AASBs comparative figures have been adjusted to conform with changes in presentation for the 
current financial year. 

Where the Group retrospectively applies an accounting policy, makes a retrospective restatement or reclassifies items 
in its financial statements, an additional (third) statement of financial position as at the beginning of the preceding 
period in addition to the minimum comparative financial statements is presented. 

b. Principles of consolidation 

As at reporting date, the assets and liabilities of all controlled entities have been incorporated into the consolidated 
financial statements as well as their results for the year then ended. Where controlled entities have entered (left) the 
Group during the year, their operating results have been included (excluded) from the date control was obtained (ceased). 

i. Business combinations 

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method as at the acquisition date, which is the date on 
which control is transferred to the Group. Control exists when the Group is exposed to variable returns from another 
entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the entity. 

The Group measures goodwill at the acquisition date as: 

 the fair value of the consideration transferred; plus 

 the recognised amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree; plus 

 if the business combination is achieved in stages, the fair value of the existing equity interest in the acquiree;  

less 

 the net recognised amount of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed.  

When the excess is negative, a bargain purchase gain is recognised immediately in profit or loss.  

The consideration transferred does not include amounts related to settlement of pre-existing relationships. Such 
amounts are generally recognised in profit or loss. 

Costs related to the acquisition, other than those associated with the issue of debt or equity securities, that the Group 
incurs in connection with a business combination are expensed as incurred.  

Any contingent consideration payable is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. If the contingent consideration 
is classified as equity, it is not remeasured and settlement is accounted for within equity. Otherwise, subsequent 
changes to the fair value of the contingent consideration are recognised in profit or loss. 

ii. Subsidiaries 

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The financial statements of subsidiaries are included in the 
consolidated financial statements from the date that control commences until the date that control ceases.  

The accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed when necessary to align them with the policies adopted by 
the Group. Losses applicable to the non-controlling interests in a subsidiary are allocated to the non-controlling 
interests even if doing so causes the non-controlling interests to have a deficit balance.  

A list of controlled entities is contained in Note 16 Controlled Entities on page 35 of the financial statements. 

iii. Loss of control 

Upon the loss of control, the Group derecognises the assets and liabilities of the subsidiary, any non-controlling 
interests and the other components of equity related to the subsidiary. Any surplus or deficit arising on the loss of 
control is recognised in profit or loss. If the Group retains any interest in the previous subsidiary, than such interest is 
measured at fair value at the date control is lost. Subsequently it is accounted for as an equity-accounted investee or as 
an available-for-sale financial asset depending on the level of influence retained. 

iv. Transactions eliminated on consolidation 

All intra-group balances and transactions, and any unrealised income and expenses arising from intra-group 
transactions, are eliminated in preparing the consolidated financial statements. 
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements 
for the year ended 30 June 2017 
 

Note  1 Statement of significant accounting policies 

c. Foreign currency transactions and balances 

i. Functional and presentation currency 

The functional ŎǳǊǊŜƴŎȅ ƻŦ ŜŀŎƘ ƻŦ ǘƘŜ DǊƻǳǇΩǎ ŜƴǘƛǘƛŜǎ ƛǎ ƳŜŀǎǳǊŜŘ ǳǎƛƴƎ ǘƘŜ ŎǳǊǊŜƴŎȅ ƻŦ ǘƘŜ ǇǊƛƳŀǊȅ ŜŎƻƴƻƳƛŎ 
environment in which that entity operates. The consolidated financial statements are presented in Australian dollars 
ǿƘƛŎƘ ƛǎ ǘƘŜ ǇŀǊŜƴǘ ŜƴǘƛǘȅΩǎ ŦǳƴŎǘƛƻƴŀƭ ŀƴd presentation currency (Blina Minerals Burkina SARL: Central African Franc; 
Blina Iron SA: United States Dollars). 

ii. Transaction and balances 

Foreign currency transactions are translated into functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the date of 
the transaction. Foreign currency monetary items are translated at the year-end exchange rate. Non-monetary items 
measured at historical cost continue to be carried at the exchange rate at the date of the transaction. Non-monetary 
items measured at fair value are reported at the exchange rate at the date when fair values were determined. 

Exchange differences arising on the translation of monetary items are recognised in the profit or loss except where 
deferred in equity as a qualifying cash flow or net investment hedge. 

Exchange differences arising on the translation of non-monetary items are recognised directly in other comprehensive 
income to the extent that the gain or loss is directly recognised in other comprehensive income, otherwise the 
exchange difference is recognised in the profit or loss. 

iii. Group companies and foreign operations 

¢ƘŜ ŦƛƴŀƴŎƛŀƭ ǊŜǎǳƭǘǎ ŀƴŘ Ǉƻǎƛǘƛƻƴ ƻŦ ŦƻǊŜƛƎƴ ƻǇŜǊŀǘƛƻƴǎ ǿƘƻǎŜ ŦǳƴŎǘƛƻƴŀƭ ŎǳǊǊŜƴŎȅ ƛǎ ŘƛŦŦŜǊŜƴǘ ŦǊƻƳ ǘƘŜ DǊƻǳǇΩǎ 
presentation currency are translated as follows: 

 assets and liabilities are translated at year-end exchange rates prevailing at that reporting date; 

 income and expenses are translated at average exchange rates for the period; and 

 retained earnings are translated at the exchange rates prevailing at the date of the transaction. 

9ȄŎƘŀƴƎŜ ŘƛŦŦŜǊŜƴŎŜǎ ŀǊƛǎƛƴƎ ƻƴ ǘǊŀƴǎƭŀǘƛƻƴ ƻŦ ŦƻǊŜƛƎƴ ƻǇŜǊŀǘƛƻƴǎ ŀǊŜ ǘǊŀƴǎŦŜǊǊŜŘ ŘƛǊŜŎǘƭȅ ǘƻ ǘƘŜ DǊƻǳǇΩǎ ŦƻǊŜƛƎƴ 
currency translation reserve in the statement of financial position. These differences are recognised in the profit or loss 
in the period in which the operation is disposed. 

d. Taxation 

i. Income tax 

The income tax expense /  (income) for the year comprises current income tax expense/(income) and deferred tax 
expense/(income). 

Current income tax expense charged to the profit or loss is the tax payable on taxable income calculated using 
applicable income tax rates enacted, or substantially enacted, as at reporting date. Current tax liabilities (assets) are 
therefore measured at the amounts expected to be paid to (recovered from) the relevant taxation authority. 

Deferred income tax expense reflects movements in deferred tax asset and deferred tax liability balances during the 
year as well as unused tax losses. 

Current and deferred income tax expense (income) is charged or credited directly in equity when the tax relates to 
items recognised directly in equity. 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are ascertained based on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of 
assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements. Deferred tax assets also result where 
amounts have been fully expensed but future tax deductions are available. No deferred income tax will be recognised 
from the initial recognition of an asset or liability, excluding a business combination, where there is no effect on 
accounting or taxable profit or loss. 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset 
is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at reporting date. Their 
measurement also reflects the manner in which management expects to recover or settle the carrying amount of the 
related asset or liability. 

Deferred tax assets relating to temporary differences and unused tax losses are recognised only to the extent that it is 
probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the benefits of the deferred tax asset can be utilised. 
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements 
for the year ended 30 June 2017 
 

Note  1 Statement of significant accounting policies 

Where temporary differences exist in relation to investments in subsidiaries, branches, associates, and joint ventures, 
deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised where the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference can 
be controlled and it is not probable that the reversal will occur in the foreseeable future. 

Current tax assets and liabilities are offset where a legally enforceable right of set-off exists and it is intended that net 
settlement or simultaneous realisation and settlement of the respective asset and liability will occur. Deferred tax 
assets and liabilities are offset where a legally enforceable right of set-off exists, the deferred tax assets and liabilities 
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either the same taxable entity or different taxable 
entities where it is intended that net settlement or simultaneous realisation and settlement of the respective asset and 
liability will occur in future periods in which significant amounts of deferred tax assets or liabilities are expected to be 
recovered or settled. 

Where the Group receives the Australian Government's Research and Development Tax Incentive, the Group accounts 
for the refundable tax offset under AASB 120. Funds are received as a ǊŜōŀǘŜ ǘƘǊƻǳƎƘ ǘƘŜ ǇŀǊŜƴǘ ŎƻƳǇŀƴȅΩǎ ƛƴŎƻƳŜ ǘŀȄ 
return and disclosed as such in Note 6 Income Tax, on page 30. 

ii. Value-added taxes 

Value-added tax (VAT) is the generic term for the broad-based consumption taxes that the Group is exposed to such as: 
Australia (Goods and Services Tax or GST); Congo (VAT); and in Burkina Faso (VAT). 

Revenues, expenses, and assets are recognised net of the amount of VAT, except where the amount of VAT incurred is 
not recoverable from the relevant country's taxation authority. In these circumstances the VAT is recognised as part of 
the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of an item of the expense. Receivables and payables in the statement of 
financial position are shown inclusive of VATs. 

The net amount of GST recoverable from, or payable to, the Australian Taxation Office (or jurisdictional equivalent) is 
included as a current asset or liability in the statement of financial position.  

Cash flows are presented in the statement of cash flows on a gross basis, except for the VAT component of investing 
and financing activities, which are disclosed as operating cash flows. 

e. Fair Value 

i. Fair Value of Assets and Liabilities 

The Group measures some of its assets and liabilities at fair value on either a recurring or non-recurring basis, 
depending on the requirements of the applicable AASB. 

Fair value is the price the Group would receive to sell an asset or would have to pay to transfer a liability in an orderly 
unforced transaction between independent, knowledgeable and willing market participants at the measurement date. 

As fair value is a market-based measure, the closest equivalent observable market pricing information is used to 
determine fair value. Adjustments to market values may be made having regard to the characteristics of the specific 
asset or liability. The fair values of assets and liabilities that are not traded in an active market are determined using 
one or more valuation techniques. These valuation techniques maximise, to the extent possible, the use of observable 
market data. 

To the extent possible, market information is extracted from either the principal market for the asset or liability (i.e. the 
market with the greatest volume and level of activity for the asset or liability) or, in the absence of such a market, the 
most advantageous market available to the entity at the end of the reporting period (i.e. the market that maximises the 
receipts from the sale of the asset or minimises the payments made to transfer the liability, after taking into account 
transaction costs and transport costs). 

For non-ŦƛƴŀƴŎƛŀƭ ŀǎǎŜǘǎΣ ǘƘŜ ŦŀƛǊ ǾŀƭǳŜ ƳŜŀǎǳǊŜƳŜƴǘ ŀƭǎƻ ǘŀƪŜǎ ƛƴǘƻ ŀŎŎƻǳƴǘ ŀ ƳŀǊƪŜǘ ǇŀǊǘƛŎƛǇŀƴǘΩǎ ŀōƛlity to use the 
asset in its highest and best use or to sell it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and 
best use. 

¢ƘŜ ŦŀƛǊ ǾŀƭǳŜ ƻŦ ƭƛŀōƛƭƛǘƛŜǎ ŀƴŘ ǘƘŜ ŜƴǘƛǘȅΩǎ ƻǿƴ Ŝǉǳƛǘȅ ƛƴǎǘǊǳƳŜƴǘǎ όŜȄŎƭǳŘƛƴƎ ǘƘƻǎŜ ǊŜƭŀǘŜŘ ǘƻ share-based payment 
arrangements) may be valued, where there is no observable market price in relation to the transfer of such financial 
instruments, by reference to observable market information where such instruments are held as assets. Where this 
information is not available, other valuation techniques are adopted and, where significant, are detailed in the 
respective note to the financial statements. 
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Note  1 Statement of significant accounting policies 

ii. Fair value hierarchy 

AASB 13 Fair Value Measurement requires the disclosure of fair value information by level of the fair value hierarchy, 
which categorises fair value measurements into one of three possible levels based on the lowest level that an input that 
is significant to the measurement can be categorised into as follows: 

 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3  

 Measurements based on quoted prices 

(unadjusted) in active markets for 

identical assets or liabilities that the 

entity can access at the measurement 

date. 

Measurements based on inputs other 

than quoted prices included in Level 1 

that are observable for the asset or 

liability, either directly or indirectly. 

Measurements based on unobservable 

inputs for the asset or liability. 
 

The fair values of assets and liabilities that are not traded in an active market are determined using one or more 
valuation techniques. These valuation techniques maximise, to the extent possible, the use of observable market data. 
If all significant inputs required to measure fair value are observable, the asset or liability is included in Level 2. If one or 
more significant inputs are not based on observable market data, the asset or liability is included in Level 3. 

iii. Valuation techniques 

The Group selects a valuation technique that is appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data is 
available to measure fair value. The availability of sufficient and relevant data primarily depends on the specific 
characteristics of the asset or liability being measured. The valuation techniques selected by the Group are consistent 
with one or more of the following valuation approaches: 

 Market approach: valuation techniques that use prices and other relevant information generated by market 
transactions for identical or similar assets or liabilities. 

 Income approach: valuation techniques that convert estimated future cash flows or income and expenses into a 
single discounted present value. 

 Cost approach: valuation techniques that reflect the current replacement cost of an asset at its current service 
capacity. 

Each valuation technique requires inputs that reflect the assumptions that buyers and sellers would use when pricing 
the asset or liability, including assumptions about risks. When selecting a valuation technique, the Group gives priority 
to those techniques that maximise the use of observable inputs and minimise the use of unobservable inputs. Inputs 
that are developed using market data (such as publicly available information on actual transactions) and reflect the 
assumptions that buyers and sellers would generally use when pricing the asset or liability are considered observable, 
whereas inputs for which market data is not available and therefore are developed using the best information available 
about such assumptions are considered unobservable. 

f. Exploration and development expenditure 

i. Recognition and measurement 

Exploration and evaluation costs, including the costs of acquiring licenses, are expensed as exploration and evaluation 
expenditure as incurred. 

g. Plant and equipment 

i. Recognition and measurement 

Items of plant and equipment are measured on the cost basis and carried at cost less accumulated depreciation (see 
below) and impairment losses (see accounting policy 1h Impairment of non-financial assets). 

Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset. The cost of self-constructed assets 
includes the cost of materials and direct labour, any other costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to a working 
condition for its intended use, and the costs of dismantling and removing the items and restoring the site on which they 
are located, and an appropriate proportion of production overheads.  

The Group currently holds no property, plant, or equipment, however should the Company retained assets of this type, 
the carrying amount of such assets shall be reviewed annually by Directors to ensure it is not in excess of the 
recoverable amount from these assets. The recoverable amount is assessed on the basis of the expected net cash flows 
that will be received from the assets employment and subsequent disposal. The expected net cash flows have not been 
discounted to their present values in determining recoverable amounts.  
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Note  1 Statement of significant accounting policies 

Where parts of an item of plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted for as separate items of 
plant and equipment. 

ii. Subsequent costs 

The cost of replacing part of an item of plant and equipment is recognised in the carrying amount of the item if it is 
probable that the future economic benefits embodied within the part will flow to the Group and its cost can be 
measured reliably. Any costs of the day-to-day servicing of plant and equipment are recognised in the statement of 
profit or loss and other comprehensive income as an expense as incurred. 

iii. Depreciation 

With the exception of exploration and evaluation assets, depreciation is charged to the income statement on a straight-
ƭƛƴŜ ōŀǎƛǎ ƻǾŜǊ ǘƘŜ ŀǎǎŜǘΩǎ ǳǎŜŦǳƭ ƭƛŦŜ ǘƻ ǘƘŜ ŎƻƴǎƻƭƛŘŀǘŜŘ ƎǊƻǳǇ ŎƻƳƳŜƴŎƛƴƎ ŦǊƻƳ ǘƘŜ ǘƛƳŜ ǘƘŜ ŀǎǎŜǘ ƛǎ ƘŜƭŘ ǊŜŀŘȅ ŦƻǊ 
use. Leasehold improvements are depreciated over the shorter of either the unexpired period of the lease or the 
estimated useful lives of the improvements. 

The Group currently holds no property, plant, or equipment. As such depreciation rates will be set as the need required 
and reviewed annually for appropriateness. 

The assets' residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting 
period. An asset's carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset's carrying 
amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount. 

Gains and losses on disposal of an item of plant and equipment are determined by comparing the proceeds from 
disposal with the carrying amount of plant and equipment and are recognised net within άƻǘƘŜǊ ƛƴŎƻƳŜέ in the 
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income. 

h. Impairment of non-financial assets 

¢ƘŜ ŎŀǊǊȅƛƴƎ ŀƳƻǳƴǘǎ ƻŦ ǘƘŜ DǊƻǳǇΩǎ ƴƻƴ-financial assets, other than deferred tax assets (see accounting policy 1d) are 
reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists 
ǘƘŜƴ ǘƘŜ ŀǎǎŜǘΩǎ Ǌecoverable amount is estimated. 

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or its cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable 
amount. A cash-generating unit is the smallest identifiable asset group that generates cash flows that largely are 
independent from other assets and groups. Impairment losses are recognised in the statement of profit or loss and other 
comprehensive income, unless the asset has previously been revalued, in which case the impairment loss is recognised as a 
reversal to the extent of that previous revaluation with any excess recognised through the statement of profit or loss and 
other comprehensive income. Impairment losses recognised in respect of cash-generating units are allocated first to reduce 
the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the units and then to reduce the carrying amount of the other assets in 
the unit on a pro rata basis. 

The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit is the greater of its fair value less costs to sell and value in use. 
In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate 
that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. For an asset that 
does not generate largely independent cash inflows, the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating unit to 
which the asset belongs. 

Impairment losses recognised in prior periods are assessed at each reporting date for any indications that the loss has 
decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to 
ŘŜǘŜǊƳƛƴŜ ǘƘŜ ǊŜŎƻǾŜǊŀōƭŜ ŀƳƻǳƴǘΦ !ƴ ƛƳǇŀƛǊƳŜƴǘ ƭƻǎǎ ƛǎ ǊŜǾŜǊǎŜŘ ƻƴƭȅ ǘƻ ǘƘŜ ŜȄǘŜƴǘ ǘƘŀǘ ǘƘŜ ŀǎǎŜǘΩǎ ŎŀǊǊȅƛƴƎ ŀƳƻǳƴǘ 
does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation and amortisation, if no 
impairment loss had been recognised. 

i. Financial instruments 

i. Initial recognition and measurement 

A financial instrument is recognised if the Group becomes party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. 
CƛƴŀƴŎƛŀƭ ŀǎǎŜǘǎ ŀǊŜ ŘŜǊŜŎƻƎƴƛǎŜŘ ƛŦ ǘƘŜ DǊƻǳǇΩǎ ŎƻƴǘǊŀŎǘǳŀƭ ǊƛƎƘǘǎ ǘƻ ǘƘŜ ŎŀǎƘ Ŧƭƻǿǎ ŦǊƻƳ ǘƘŜ ŦƛƴŀƴŎƛŀƭ ŀǎǎŜǘǎ ŜȄǇƛǊŜ ƻǊ ƛŦ 
the Group transfers the financial asset to another party without retaining control or substantially all risks and rewards 
ƻŦ ǘƘŜ ŀǎǎŜǘΦ CƛƴŀƴŎƛŀƭ ƭƛŀōƛƭƛǘƛŜǎ ŀǊŜ ŘŜǊŜŎƻƎƴƛǎŜŘ ƛŦ ǘƘŜ DǊƻǳǇΩǎ ƻōƭƛƎŀǘƛƻƴǎ ǎǇŜŎƛŦƛŜŘ ƻƴ ǘƘŜ ŎƻƴǘǊŀŎǘ ŜȄǇƛǊŜ ƻǊ ŀǊŜ 
discharged or cancelled. 
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Note  1 Statement of significant accounting policies 

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly 
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and 
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial 
assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the 
acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in 
profit or loss. 

ii. Non-derivative financial instruments 

Non-derivative financial instruments comprise investments in equity securities, trade and other receivables, cash and 
cash equivalents and trade and other payables. 

Non-derivative financial instruments are recognised initially at fair value plus, for instruments not at fair value through 
profit or loss, any directly attributable transactions costs. Subsequent to initial recognition non-derivative financial 
instruments are measured as described below. 

iii. Classification and Subsequent Measurement 

(1) Cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, deposits held at call with banks, other short-term highly liquid 
investments with original maturities of nine months or less, and bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are shown 
within short-term borrowings in current liabilities on the statement of financial position. 

(2) Loans 

Loans are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active 
market and are subsequently measured at amortised cost. 

Loans are included in current assets, except for those which are not expected to mature within 12 months after 
the end of the reporting period. 

(3) Trade and other receivables 

Receivables are usually settled within 60 days. Receivables expected to be collected within 12 months of the end 
of the reporting period are classified as current assets. All other receivables are classified as non-current assets. 

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost 
using the effective interest method, less any provision for impairment. Collectability of trade and other 
receivables are reviewed on an ongoing basis. An impairment loss is recognised for debts which are known to be 
uncollectible. An impairment provision is raised for any doubtful amounts (see also 1i.vii). 

(4) Trade and other payables 

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Group prior to the end of the financial 
year which are unpaid and stated at their amortised cost. The amounts are unsecured and are generally settled 
on 30 day terms. 

(5) Share capital 

Ordinary issued capital is recorded at the consideration received. Incremental costs directly attributable to the 
issue of ordinary shares and share options are recognised as a deduction from equity, net of any related income 
tax benefit. Ordinary issued capital bears no special terms or conditions affecting income or capital entitlements 
of the shareholders. 

iv. Amortised cost 

Amortised cost is calculated as the amount at which the financial asset or financial liability is measured at initial 
recognition less principal repayments and any reduction for impairment, and adjusted for any cumulative amortisation 
of the difference between that initial amount and the maturity amount calculated using the effective interest method. 

v. Fair value 

Fair value is determined based on current bid prices for all quoted investments. Valuation techniques are applied to 
ŘŜǘŜǊƳƛƴŜ ǘƘŜ ŦŀƛǊ ǾŀƭǳŜ ŦƻǊ ŀƭƭ ǳƴƭƛǎǘŜŘ ǎŜŎǳǊƛǘƛŜǎΣ ƛƴŎƭǳŘƛƴƎ ǊŜŎŜƴǘ ŀǊƳΩǎ ƭŜƴƎǘƘ ǘǊŀƴǎŀŎǘƛƻƴǎΣ ǊŜŦŜǊŜƴŎŜ ǘƻ ǎƛƳƛƭŀǊ 
instruments and option pricing models. 
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Note  1 Statement of significant accounting policies 

vi. Effective interest method 

The effective interest method is used to allocate interest income or interest expense over the relevant period and is 
equivalent to the rate that discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts (including fees, transaction costs and 
other premiums or discounts) over the expected life (or when this cannot be reliably predicted, the contractual term) of 
the financial instrument to the net carrying amount of the financial asset or financial liability. Revisions to expected 
future net cash flows will necessitate an adjustment to the carrying amount with a consequential recognition of an 
income or expense item in profit or loss. 

vii. Impairment 

A financial asset is assessed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any objective evidence that it is 
impaired. A financial asset is considered to be impaired if objective evidence indicates that one or more events have 
had a negative effect on the estimated future cash flows of that asset. 

An impairment loss in respect of a financial asset measured at amortised cost is calculated as the difference between its 
carrying amount, and the present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the original effective interest 
rate. 

Financial assets are tested for impairment on an individual basis.  

All impairment losses are recognised in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.  

An impairment loss is reversed if the reversal can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment loss 
was recognised. For financial assets measured at amortised cost the reversal is recognised in the statement of profit or 
loss and other comprehensive income.  

viii. Derecognition 

Financial assets are derecognised where the contractual rights to cash flow expires or the asset is transferred to 
another party whereby the entity no longer has any significant continuing involvement in the risks and benefits 
associated with the asset. Financial liabilities are derecognised where the related obligations are either discharged, 
cancelled or expired. The difference between the carrying value of the financial liability extinguished or transferred to 
another party and the fair value of consideration paid, including the transfer of non-cash assets or liabilities assumed, is 
recognised in profit or loss. 

ix. Finance income and expenses 

Finance income comprises interest income on funds invested (including available-for-sale financial assets), gains on the 
disposal of available-for-sale financial assets and changes in the fair value of financial assets at fair value through profit 
or loss. Interest income is recognised as it accrues in profit or loss, using the effective interest method.  

Financial expenses comprise interest expense on borrowings calculated using the effective interest method, unwinding 
of discounts on provisions, changes in the fair value of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss and 
impairment losses recognised on financial assets. All borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss using the effective 
interest method. 

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of assets that necessarily take a 
substantial period of time to prepare for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until such 
time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale. All other borrowing costs are recognised in the 
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income in the period in which they are incurred. 

Foreign currency gains and losses are reported on a net basis.  

j. Employee benefits 

i. Short-term benefits 

Liabilities for employee benefits for wages, salaries and annual leave that are expected to be settled within 12 months 
ƻŦ ǘƘŜ ǊŜǇƻǊǘƛƴƎ ŘŀǘŜ ǊŜǇǊŜǎŜƴǘ ǇǊŜǎŜƴǘ ƻōƭƛƎŀǘƛƻƴǎ ǊŜǎǳƭǘƛƴƎ ŦǊƻƳ ŜƳǇƭƻȅŜŜǎΩ ǎŜǊǾƛŎŜǎ ǇǊƻǾƛŘŜŘ ǘƻ ǘƘŜ ǊŜǇƻǊǘƛƴƎ Řŀte 
and are calculated at undiscounted amounts based on remuneration wage and salary rates that the Group expects to 
pay at the reporting date including related on-costs, such as workers compensation insurance and payroll tax. 

Non-accumulating non-monetary benefits, such as medical care, housing, cars and free or subsidised goods and 
services, are expensed based on the net marginal cost to the Group as the benefits are taken by the employees. 
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Note  1 Statement of significant accounting policies 

For the year ending 30 June 2017, no amount for short term benefits has been recognised in the financial statements as 
the Group has no employees. 

ii. Other long-term benefits 

¢ƘŜ DǊƻǳǇΩǎ ƻōƭƛƎŀǘƛƻƴ ƛƴ ǊŜǎǇŜŎǘ ƻŦ ƭƻƴƎ-term employee benefits other than definite benefit plans is the amount of 
future benefit that employees have earned in return for their service in the current and prior periods plus related on-
costs; that benefit is discounted to determine its present value, and the fair value of any related assets is deducted. The 
discount rate is the Reserve Bank of AustraƭƛŀΩǎ ŎŀǎƘ ǊŀǘŜ ŀǘ ǘƘŜ ǊŜǇƻǊǘ ŘŀǘŜ ǘƘŀǘ ƘŀǾŜ ƳŀǘǳǊƛǘȅ ŘŀǘŜǎ ŀǇǇǊƻȄƛƳŀǘƛƴƎ ǘƘŜ 
ǘŜǊƳǎ ƻŦ ǘƘŜ /ƻƳǇŀƴȅΩǎ ƻōƭƛƎŀǘƛƻƴǎΦ !ƴȅ ŀŎǘǳŀǊƛŀƭ Ǝŀƛƴǎ ƻǊ ƭƻǎǎŜǎ ŀǊŜ ǊŜŎƻƎƴƛǎŜŘ ƛƴ ǇǊƻŦƛǘ ƻǊ ƭƻǎǎ ƛƴ ǘƘŜ ǇŜǊƛƻŘ ƛƴ ǿƘƛŎƘ 
they arise.  

For the period ending 30 June 2017, no amount for long term benefits has been recognised in the financial statements 
as the Group has no employees. 

iii. Retirement benefit obligations: Defined contribution superannuation funds 

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which an entity pays fixed contributions onto a 
separate entity and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further amounts. Obligations for contributions 
to defined contribution superannuation funds are recognised as an expense in the statement of profit or loss and other 
comprehensive income as incurred. 

iv. Termination benefits 

When applicable, the Group recognises a liability and expense for termination benefits at the earlier of: (a) the date 
when the Group can no longer withdraw the offer for termination benefits; and (b) when the Group recognises costs 
for restructuring pursuant to AASB 137 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets and the costs include 
termination benefits. In either case, unless the number of employees affected is known, the obligation for termination 
benefits is measured on the basis of the number of employees expected to be affected. Termination benefits that are 
expected to be settled wholly before 12 months after the annual reporting period in which the benefits are recognised 
are measured at the (undiscounted) amounts expected to be paid. All other termination benefits are accounted for on 
the same basis as other long-term employee benefits. 

v. Equity-settled compensation 

The Group operates an employee share option plan. The fair value of options granted is recognised as an employee 
expense with a corresponding increase in equity. The fair value is measured at grant date and spread over the period 
during which the employees become unconditionally entitled to the options. The fair value of the options granted is 
measured using the Black-Scholes pricing model, taking into account the terms and conditions upon which the options 
were granted. The amount recognised is adjusted to reflect the actual number of share options that vest except where 
forfeiture is only due to market conditions not being met. 

k. Provisions 

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a legal or constructive obligation, as a result of past events, for which it is 
probable that an outflow of economic benefits will results and that outflow can be reliably measured. 

Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market 
assessments of the time value of money and, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. 

i. Site restoration and rehabilitation 

Lƴ ŀŎŎƻǊŘŀƴŎŜ ǿƛǘƘ ǘƘŜ DǊƻǳǇΩǎ ŜƴǾƛǊƻƴƳŜƴǘŀƭ ǇƻƭƛŎȅ ŀƴŘ ŀǇǇƭƛŎŀōƭŜ ƭŜƎŀƭ requirements, a provision for site restoration 
and rehabilitation in respect of disturbed land is recognised when the land is disturbed. 

The provision is the best estimate of the present value of the expenditure required to settle the restoration and 
rehabilitation obligation at the reporting date, based on current legal requirements and technology. Future restoration 
and rehabilitation costs are reviewed annually and any changes are reflected in the present value of the restoration and 
rehabilitation provision at the end of the reporting period. 

The amount of the provision for future restoration and rehabilitation costs is capitalised and depreciated in accordance 
with the policy set out in accounting policy 1g Plant and equipment. The unwinding of the effect of discounting on the 
provision is recognised as a finance cost. 

l. Revenue and other income 

Interest revenue is recognised in accordance with note 1i.ix Finance income and expenses. 
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Note  1 Statement of significant accounting policies 

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable after taking into account any trade 
discounts and volume rebates allowed. When the inflow of consideration is deferred, it is treated as the provision of 
financing and is discounted at a rate of interest that is generally accepted in the market for similar arrangements. The 
difference between the amount initially recognised and the amount ultimately received is interest revenue. 

All revenue is stated net of the amount of value added taxes (note 1d.ii Value-added taxes). 

m. Earnings per share 

i. Basic earnings per share 

Basic earnings (or loss) per share is determined by dividing the profit or loss attributable to equity holders of the parent 
company, excluding any costs of service equity other than ordinary shares, by the weighted average number of 
ordinary shares outstanding during the financial year, adjusted for bonus elements in ordinary shares issued during the 
year. 

ii. Diluted earnings per share 

Diluted earnings (or loss) per share is determined by adjusting the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders 
and the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding for the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares 
which comprise share options granted as Share-based payments.  

The Group does not report diluted earnings per share on annual losses generated by the Group. 

n. Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgments 

aŀƴŀƎŜƳŜƴǘ ŘƛǎŎǳǎǎŜǎ ǿƛǘƘ ǘƘŜ .ƻŀǊŘ ǘƘŜ ŘŜǾŜƭƻǇƳŜƴǘΣ ǎŜƭŜŎǘƛƻƴ ŀƴŘ ŘƛǎŎƭƻǎǳǊŜ ƻŦ ǘƘŜ DǊƻǳǇΩǎ ŎǊƛǘƛŎŀƭ ŀŎŎƻǳƴǘƛƴƎ ǇƻƭƛŎƛŜǎ 
and estimates and the application of these policies and estimates. The estimates and judgements that have a significant 
risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are 
discussed below. 

i. Key Estimate ð Site restoration and rehabilitation provision 

The Group assesses its site restoration and rehabilitation provision at each balance date in accordance with accounting 
policy 1k.i. Significant judgement is required in determining the provision for site restoration and rehabilitation as there 
are many transactions and other factors that will affect the ultimate liability payable to rehabilitate and restore the 
mine sites and related assets. Factors that will affect this liability include future development, changes in technology, 
price increases and changes in interest rates. When these factors change or become known in the future, such 
differences will impact the site restoration and rehabilitation provision and asset in the period in which they change or 
become known. 

ii. Key Judgments ï Share-based Payments 

The Group measures the cost of equity-settled transactions by reference to the fair value of the equity instruments at 
the date at which they are granted. The fair value is determined by an internal valuation using a Black-Scholes option 
pricing model, using the assumptions detailed in note 17 Share-based payments. 

o. New, revised or amending Accounting Standards and Interpretations 

A number of new standards, amendments to standards and interpretations issued by the AASB which are not yet 
mandatorily applicable to the Company have not been applied in preparing these financial statements. Those which may be 
relevant to the Company are set out below. The Group does not plan to adopt these standards early.  

The following AASBs are most relevant to the Group: 

i. AASB 16: Leases (applicable to annual reporting periods commencing on or after 1 January 2019). 

AASB 16 removes the classification of leases as either operating leases or finance leases for the lessee effectively 
treating all leases as finance leases. Short term leases (less than 12 months) and leases of a low value are exempt from 
the lease accounting requirements. Lessor accounting remains similar to current practice. 

The Directors anticipate that the adoption of AASB 16 ǿƛƭƭ ƴƻǘ ƘŀǾŜ ŀ ƳŀǘŜǊƛŀƭ ƛƳǇŀŎǘ ƻƴ ǘƘŜ DǊƻǳǇΩǎ ǊŜŎƻƎƴƛǘƛƻƴ ƻŦ 
leases and disclosures. 



mailto:general@blinaminerals.com.au
http://www.blinaminerals.com.au/
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Note  3 Revenue and other income Note 2017 

 $ 

2016 

 $ 

Other Income    

 Legal Settlement  3a 175,000 - 

  175,000 - 

a. During the period the Company settled the legal proceedings with Andes Resources Limited (Andes) on a confidential basis 
and without admission as to liability. The Company accepted and received $175,000 from Andes in full and final settlement 
ƻŦ !ƴŘŜǎΩ ŎƭŀƛƳ ŀƴŘ /ƻƳǇŀƴȅΩǎ counter-claim. In exchange, the Company (1) withdrew entirely from the Andes Project; (2) 
returned or destroyed all data it had in its possession regarding the Andes Project; and (3) agreed that it or its related 
parties will not apply for any mining tenements within an agreed radius of the Andes Project until after 19 October 2018. 

 

Note  4 Profit / (loss) before income tax  2017 

 $ 

2016 

 $ 

The following significant revenue and expense items are relevant in explaining 
the financial performance: 

 
  

a. Exploration and evaluation costs:    

 Exploration and evaluation expenditure  48,387 80,415 

Total exploration and rehabilitation costs  48,387 80,415 

b. Net financing income:    

 Financial income    

4 Interest revenue  5,606 8,902 

Total financial income  5,606 8,902 

 Financial expense    

4 Interest expense  284 822 

4 Net foreign currency exchange loss  - 2,890 

Total financial expense   284 3,712 

Net financing income  5,322 5,190 

 

Note  5 Auditorõs remuneration  2017 

 $ 

2016 

 $ 

Remuneration of the Auditor of the Group for:    

 Auditing or reviewing the financial reports  21,100 25,998 

 Taxation services provided by a related practice of the Auditor  - - 

  21,100 25,998 
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Note 6 Income tax Note 2017 

 $ 

2016 

 $ 

a. Income tax expense / (benefit)    

Current tax  - - 

Deferred tax  - - 

Tax rebate for Research and Development  - - 

  - - 

Deferred income tax expense included in income tax expense comprises:    

 Increase / (decrease) in deferred tax assets 6c - - 

 (Increase) / decrease in deferred tax liabilities 6d - - 

  - - 

b. Reconciliation of income tax expense to prima facie tax payable    

The prima facie tax payable / (benefit) on loss from ordinary activities before 
income tax is reconciled to the income tax expense as follows:    

Prima facie tax on operating loss at 27.5% (2016: 30%)  (79,806) (216,202) 

Add / (Less)    

Tax effect of:    

 Foreign exploration assets  7,806 80,604 

 Exempt foreign entity  ( 959) 2,936 

 Non-deductible expenses  54,189 31,526 

 Effect of unrecognised temporary difference  (11,689) (9,638) 

 Non-assessable revenue  (48,125)  

 Deferred tax asset not brought to account  78,584 110,774 

Income tax expense / (benefit) attributable to operating loss  - - 

  % % 

The applicable weighted average effective tax rates attributable to operating 
profit are as follows  nil nil 

  $ $ 

Balance of franking account at year end  nil nil 

c. Deferred tax assets    

Tax losses  72,507 77,240 

  72,507 77,240 

Set-off deferred tax liabilities  6d (72,507) (77,240) 

Net deferred tax assets  - - 

Less deferred tax assets not recognised  - - 

Net tax assets  - - 
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Note  6 Income tax (cont.) Note 2017 

 $ 

2016 

 $ 

d. Deferred tax liabilities    

Provisions   72,130 77,240 

Prepayments   377 - 

  72,507 77,240 

Set-off deferred tax assets 6c (72,507) (77,240) 

Net deferred tax liabilities  - - 

e. Tax losses    

Unused tax losses for which no deferred tax asset has been recognised, that 
may be utilised to offset tax liabilities:    

 Deductible temporary differences  106,750 129,881 

 Revenue losses  2,039,962 2,227,887 

 Capital losses  332,029 362,214 

  2,478,741 2,719,982 

Potential deferred tax assets attributable to tax losses have not been brought to account at 30 June 2017 because the directors 
do not believe it is appropriate to regard realisation of the deferred tax assets as probable at this point in time. These benefits 
will only be obtained if: 

i. the Group derives future assessable income of a nature and of an amount sufficient to enable the benefit from the 
deductions for the loss and exploration expenditure to be realised; 

ii. the Company continues to comply with conditions for deductibility imposed by law; and 

iii. no changes in tax legislation adversely affect the Group in realising the benefit from the deductions for the loss and 
exploration expenditure. 

 

Note  7 Earnings per share (EPS) Note 2017 

 $ 

2016 

 $ 

a. Reconciliation of earnings to net profit or loss    

Profit /(loss)  (290,205) (720,673) 

(Profit) / loss attributable to non-controlling equity interest  3,094   17 

 Profit / (loss) used in the calculation of basic and dilutive EPS  (287,111) (720,656) 
    

  2017 

 No. 

2016 

No. 

b. Weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year used in 

calculation of basic EPS  2,565,946,365 2,109,061,080 

Weighted average number of dilutive options outstanding 7d N/A N/A 

Weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year 
used in calculating dilutive EPS  2,565,946,365 2,109,061,080 

    

  2017 
 

2016 
 

c. Earnings per share    

 Basic and diluted earnings per share (cents per share)  (0.011) (0.034) 
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Note  7 Earnings per share (cont.)    

d. The Group does not report diluted earnings per share where options would not result in the issue of ordinary shares for 
less than the average market price during the period (out of the money).  

In addition, the Group does not report diluted earnings per share on annual losses generated by the Group. At the end of 
the 2017 financial year, the Group has 650,666,667 (2016: 415,666,667) unissued shares under options out of the money 
and which are anti-dilutive. 

 

Note  8 Cash and cash equivalents  2017 

 $ 

2016 

 $ 

Cash at bank  565,035 502,063 

Less:  Funds garnished by Congolese Government due to the dissolution of the 
Banque Internationale pour l'Afrique au Congo  (30,773) - 

  534,262 502,063 

a. Reconciliation of cash flow from operations to profit / ( loss) after income tax    

Profit / ( loss) after income tax   (290,205) (720,673) 

Non-cash flows in profit / ( loss) from ordinary activities:    

 Share-based settlement of director fees and creditors  - 101,660 

 Receipt of environmental bonds held over rehabilitation properties  (36,000) - 

Changes in assets and liabilities, net of the effects of purchase and disposal 
of subsidiaries  

  

 (Increase)/decrease in trade and other receivables  42,378 (5,639) 

 (Increase)/decrease in other assets  3,799 4,855 

 Increase/(decrease) in trade and other payables  7,286 (64,942) 

 Increase/(decrease) in provisions  (59,539) (12,712) 

Cash flow from operations -  (332,281) (697,451) 

b. Credit standby facilities    

The Group has no credit standby facilities.    

c. Non-cash investing and financing activities    

None 

d. ¢ƘŜ DǊƻǳǇΩǎ ŜȄǇƻǎǳǊŜ ǘƻ ƛƴǘŜǊŜǎǘ ǊŀǘŜ Ǌƛǎƪ ŀƴŘ ŀ ǎŜƴǎƛǘƛǾƛǘȅ ŀƴŀƭȅǎƛǎ ŦƻǊ ŦƛƴŀƴŎƛŀƭ ŀǎǎŜǘǎ ŀƴŘ ƭƛŀōƛƭƛǘƛŜǎ ŀǊŜ ŘƛǎŎƭƻǎŜŘ ƛƴ ƴote 
24 Financial risk management on page 41. 

 

Note  9 Trade and other receivables Note 2017 

 $ 

2016 

 $ 

a. Current    

Value-added tax receivable 9c 6,617 13,037 

  6,617 13,037 

b. Non-current    

Environmental bonds refundable  211,042 247,000 

  211,042 247,000 

c. Value-added tax (VAT) is a generic term for the broad-based consumption taxes that the Group is exposed to such as: 
Australia (GST) and in Burkina Faso and the Democratic Republic of Congo (VAT). 

d. ¢ƘŜ DǊƻǳǇΩǎ ŜȄǇƻǎǳǊŜ ǘƻ ƛƴǘŜǊŜǎǘ ǊŀǘŜ Ǌƛǎƪ ŀƴŘ ŀ ǎŜƴǎƛǘƛǾƛǘȅ ŀƴŀƭȅǎƛǎ ŦƻǊ ŦƛƴŀƴŎƛŀƭ ŀǎǎŜǘǎ ŀƴŘ ƭƛŀōƛƭƛǘƛŜǎ ŀǊŜ ŘƛǎŎƭƻǎŜŘ ƛƴ ƴote 
24 Financial risk management on page 41. 
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Note  10 Other assets  2017 

 $ 

2016 

 $ 

Current    

Prepayments  10,831 14,630 

  10,831 14,630 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Note  11 Trade and other payables Note 2017 

 $ 

2016 

 $ 

Current    

Unsecured    

Trade payables 11a 63,674 87,341 

Other creditors and accruals  44,521 22,552 

  108,195 109,893 

a. Trade payables are non-interest bearing and usually settled within the lower of terms of trade or 30 days. 

b. ¢ƘŜ DǊƻǳǇΩǎ exposure to interest rate risk and a sensitivity analysis for financial assets and liabilities are disclosed in note 
24 Financial risk management on page 41. 

 

Note  12 Borrowings Note 2017 

 $ 

2016 

 $ 

Current    

Short-term borrowings 12a 8,984 - 

a. Short-term borrowings comprise premium funding for insurance policies, repayable within 12 months. 
 

Note  13 Provisions Note 2017 

 $ 

2016 

 $ 

a. Disclosed as:    

 Current  28,000 66,651 

 Non-current  56,000 76,888 

Carrying amount at the end of year 13b 84,000 143,539 

b. Movements in carrying amounts    

   Site 

Restoration 

$ 

Total 

$ 

Balance at the beginning of year  143,539 143,539 

Rehabilitation expenditure applied  (4,825) (4,825) 

Change in estimates of rehabilitation costs  (54,714)  (54,714) 

Carrying amount at the end of year  84,000 84,000 

c. Site restoration 

In accordance with ǘƘŜ DǊƻǳǇΩǎ ŜƴǾƛǊƻƴƳŜƴǘŀƭ ǇƻƭƛŎȅ ŀƴŘ ŀǇǇƭƛŎŀōƭŜ ƭŜƎŀƭ ǊŜǉǳƛǊŜƳŜƴǘǎΣ ŀ ǇǊƻǾƛǎƛƻƴ ŦƻǊ ǎƛǘŜ ǊŜǎǘƻǊŀǘƛƻƴ ƛƴ 
respect of disturbed land is recognised when the land is disturbed. The basis of accounting is set out in note 1k.i of the 
significant accounting policies. 

d. Change in accounting estimates 

Refer to note 1n.i Key Estimate τ Site restoration and rehabilitation provision on page 27. 
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Note  14 Issued capital Note 2017 

No. 

2016 

 No. 

2017 

 $ 

2016 

 $ 

Fully paid ordinary shares 14a 2,893,891,570 2,543,891,552 34,142,427  33,854,887  

a. Ordinary shares      

At the beginning of the year  2,543,891,570 1,609,565,917 33,854,887 32,940,458 

Shares issued during the year:      

 27 November 2015   47,325,653  47,325 

 24 December 2015   887,000,000  887,000 

 7 June 2017  350,000,000 - 350,000 - 

Transaction costs relating to issues  - - (62,460) (19,896) 

At reporting date  2,893,891,570 2,543,891,570 34,142,427 33,854,887 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

b. Options   

For information relating to the Blina Minerals NL scheme, including details of options issued and/or lapsed during the 
financial year, and the options outstanding at balance date, refer to Note 17 Share-based Payments on page 35. The total 
number of options on issue are as follows: 

  2017 

No. 

2016 

 No. 

Listed options  - - 

Unlisted options  650,666,667 415,666,667 

  650,666,667 415,666,667 

c. Capital Management    

¢ƘŜ 5ƛǊŜŎǘƻǊǎΩ ƻōƧŜŎǘƛǾŜǎ ǿƘŜƴ ƳŀƴŀƎƛƴƎ ŎŀǇƛǘŀƭ ŀǊŜ to ensure that the Group can maintain a capital base so as to maintain 
investor, creditor and market confidence and to sustain future development of the business. The Board of Directors 
monitors the availability of liquid funds in order to meet its short term commitments. It does this by ensuring that its 
current ratio (current assets divided by current liabilities) remains in excess of 1:1. 

  2017 2016  

 Current ratio 3.80 3.00  
 

5ǳŜ ǘƻ ǘƘŜ ƴŀǘǳǊŜ ƻŦ ǘƘŜ DǊƻǳǇΩǎ ŀŎǘƛǾƛǘƛŜǎΣ ōŜƛƴƎ ƳƛƴŜǊŀƭ ŜȄǇƭƻǊŀǘƛƻƴΣ ǘƘŜ DǊƻǳǇ ŘƻŜǎ ƴƻǘ ƘŀǾŜ ǊŜŀŘȅ ŀŎŎŜǎǎ ǘƻ ŎǊŜŘƛǘ 
ŦŀŎƛƭƛǘƛŜǎΣ ǿƛǘƘ ǘƘŜ ǇǊƛƳŀǊȅ ǎƻǳǊŎŜ ƻŦ ŦǳƴŘƛƴƎ ōŜƛƴƎ Ŝǉǳƛǘȅ ǊŀƛǎƛƴƎǎΦ ¢ƘŜǊŜŦƻǊŜΣ ǘƘŜ ŦƻŎǳǎ ƻŦ ǘƘŜ DǊƻǳǇΩǎ ŎŀǇƛǘŀƭ Ǌƛǎƪ 
management is the current working capital position against the requirements of the Group to meet exploration 
ǇǊƻƎǊŀƳƳŜǎ ŀƴŘ ŎƻǊǇƻǊŀǘŜ ƻǾŜǊƘŜŀŘǎΦ ¢ƘŜ DǊƻǳǇΩǎ ǎǘǊŀǘŜƎȅ ƛǎ ǘƻ ŜƴǎǳǊŜ ŀǇǇǊƻǇǊƛŀǘŜ ƭƛǉǳƛŘƛǘȅ ƛǎ ƳŀƛƴǘŀƛƴŜŘ ǘƻ ƳŜŜǘ 
anticipated operating requirements, with a view to initiating appropriate capital raisings as required.  

The Group is not subject to externally imposed capital requirements. 

The working capital position of the Group at 30 June 2017 and 30 June 2016 were as follows: 

 Note 2017 

$ 

2016 

 $ 

Cash and cash equivalents 8 534,262 502,063 

Trade and other receivables  9 6,617 13,037 

Trade and other payables 11 (108,195) (109,893) 

Short-term provisions 13 (28,000) (66,651) 

Borrowings 12 (8,984) - 

Working capital position  395,700 338,556 
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Note  15 Reserves Note 2017 

 $ 

2016 

 $ 

Option reserve 15a 143,620 102,078 

Foreign exchange reserve 15b 3,414 4,434 

  147,034 106,512 

a. Option reserve 

The Share-based payments reserve is used to record the fair value of equity instruments issued to employees, including Key 
Management Personnel, as part of their remuneration and issued to external parties for the receipt of goods and services. 
For information relating to Blina Minerals NL options, including details of options issued, exercised and lapsed during the 
financial year and the options outstanding at year-end refer to Note 17 Share-based Payments on page 35. 

b. Foreign Exchange Translation Reserve 

The foreign exchange reserve records exchange differences arising on translation of foreign controlled subsidiary. 
 

Note  16 Controlled entities 

Controlled Entities Country of  

Incorporation 

Class of  

Shares 

Percentage Owned 

2017 2016 

Blina Minerals Burkina SARL Burkina Faso Ordinary 100% 100% 

Blina Iron SA Democratic Republic of Congo Ordinary 90% 90% 

a. Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost. 

b. Blina Minerals NL is the ultimate parent of the Group. 
 

Note  17 Share-based payments Note 2017 

 $ 

2016 

 $ 

Share-based payment expense recognised in Profit or Loss 17b.i - 101,660 

Share-based payment expense recognised in Equity in transaction costs 17b.ii 41,960 - 

Gross share-based transactions  41,960 101,660 

a. Share-based payment plans 

The Plan was adopted in order to ensure that the Company has appropriate mechanisms to continue to attract and retain 
the services of employees of a high calibre. Directors and their associates are not eligible to participate in the Plan.  

The key terms of the Plan are summarised below. 

 Eligibility and Grant of Incentive 

Options 

The Board may grant Incentive Options to any full or part time employee of the Company or an associated body 

corporate. Incentive Options may be granted by the Board at any time.  

 Consideration Each Incentive Option issued under the Plan will be issued for nil cash consideration.  

 Conversion Each Incentive Option is exercisable into one Share in the Company ranking equally in all respects with the 

existing issued Shares in the Company. 

 Exercise Price and Expiry Date To be determined by the Board prior to the grant of the Incentive Options. 

 Exercise Restrictions The Incentive Options may be subject to conditions on exercise as may be fixed by the Directors prior to grant.  

 Share Restriction Period Shares issued on the Exercise of Incentive Options may be subject to a restriction that they may not be 

transferred or otherwise dealt with until a Restriction Period has expired, as specified in the Offer for the 

Incentive Options.  

b. Share-based payment arrangements in effect during the period 

i. At the general meeting held on 25 November 2015, shareholders approved the issue of 120,000,000 options to KMP for 
a total of $101,660 for the 2016 financial year.  

ii. As part of the 7 June 2017 capital raise, 60,000,000 $0.0017 options were issued to the Lead Manager. The options 
were valued at $41,960 and expire on 31 October 2020 
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Note  17 Share-based payments (cont.) 

c. Options granted to KMP are as follow 

 Grant Date Number  

 
25 November 2015 120,000,000  

d. Movement in share-based payment arrangements during the period 

A summary of the movements of all Company options issued as share-based payments is as follows: 

 2017 2016 

 
Number of Options 

Weighted Average 

Exercise Price 
Number of Options 

Weighted Average 

Exercise Price 

Outstanding at the beginning of the year 120,000,000 $0.0017 5,000,000 $0.60 

Granted 60,000,000 $0.0017 120,000,000 $0.0017 

Exercised - - - - 

Expired - - (5,000,000) $0.60 

Outstanding at year-end 180,000,000 $0.0017 120,000,000 $0.0017 

Exercisable at year-end 180,000,000 $0.0017 120,000,000 $0.0017 

Reconciliation to total Company options     

Non share-based payment options 
outstanding at the beginning of the year 295,666,667  -  

Placement options issued to shareholders  175,000,000  295,666,667  

Total Company options on issue 650,666,667  415,666,667  

i. No options were exercised during the year.  

ii. The weighted average remaining contractual life of share-based payment options outstanding at year end was less than 
3.39 years. The weighted average exercise price of outstanding shares at the end of the reporting period was $0.0017. 

 

e. Fair value of Share-based payment options granted during the period 

The weighted average fair value of share-based payment options granted during the year was $0.0007 (2016: $0.00085). 
These values were calculated using the Black-Scholes option pricing model, applying the following inputs to options issued 
this year: 

 Grant date: 7 June 2017  

 Grant date share price: $0.00105  

 Option exercise price: $0.0017  

 Number of options issued: 60,000,000  

 Remaining life (years): 3.30  

 Expected share price volatility: 119.51%  

 Risk-free interest rate: 1.70%  

 Value per option $0.0007  

Historical volatility has been the basis for determining expected share price volatility as it is assumed that this is indicative 

of future movements. 
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Note  18 Key management personnel compensation 

The names and positions of Key Management Personnel (KMP) are as follows: 

 Mr Brett Fraser Non-executive Chairman  

 Mr David Porter Executive Director 

 Mr Jay Stephenson Non-executive Director (Appointed 25 October 2016) 

 Mr Justin Virgin Non-executive Director (Resigned 25 October 2016) 

The totals of remuneration paid to KMP during the year are as follows: 

  2017 

 $ 

2016 

 $ 

Short-term employee benefits  176,978 193,290 

Other short-term benefits  20,000 - 

Post-employment benefits  7,788 6,836 

Share-based payments  - 101,660 

Other long-term benefits  - - 

Termination benefits  - - 

Total  204,766 301,786 

wŜŦŜǊ ǘƻ ǘƘŜ wŜƳǳƴŜǊŀǘƛƻƴ wŜǇƻǊǘ ŎƻƴǘŀƛƴŜŘ ƛƴ ǘƘŜ 5ƛǊŜŎǘƻǊΩǎ wŜǇƻǊǘ ƻƴ ǇŀƎŜ 8 for details of the remuneration paid to each 
ƳŜƳōŜǊ ƻŦ ǘƘŜ DǊƻǳǇΩǎ KMP for the year ended 30 June 2017. 
 

Note  19 Related party transactions    

a. Other related party transactions    

Transactions between related parties are on normal commercial terms and 
conditions no more favourable than those available to other parties unless 
otherwise stated. 

Note 
2017 

 $ 

2016 

 $ 

 Wolfstar Corporate Management Pty Ltd    

Wolfstar Corporate Management Pty Ltd, a company jointly controlled by 
Mr Fraser, provides financial services to Blina Minerals NL. These services 
are performed indirectly by Mr Fraser. 

 

75,000 76,274 

b. KMP and related party balances 

i. Contained within other creditors and accruals are the following accruals 
for fees payable to KMP: 

 
  

 Mr Brett Fraser  20,000 29,958 

 Mr David Porter  5,000 - 

 Mr Justin Virgin  - 18,367 

ii. Contained within trade and other payables are the follows balances 
payable to related parties 

 
  

 Metallica Investments Pty Ltd  28,973 28,973 
 

Note  20 Events subsequent to reporting date 

As at the date of this report, there have been no material events subsequent to report date. 
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Note  21 Contingent liabilities 

There are no contingent liabilities as at 30 June 2017 (2016: Nil). 
 

Note  22 Operating segments  2014 

 $ 

2013 

 $ 

a. Identification of reportable segments 

The Group operates predominantly in the mining industry. This comprises exploration and evaluation of coal, copper, gold, 
manganese, or iron ore projects. Inter-segment transactions are priced at cost to the Group. 

The Group has identified its operating segments based on the internal reports that are provided to the Board of Directors 
on a monthly basis and in determining the allocation of resources. Management has identified the operating segments 
based on the two principal locations based on geographical areas and therefore different regulatory environments ς 
Australia and Africa.  

Corporate expenses include administration and regulatory expenses arising from operating an ASX listed entity.  

Segment assets include the costs to acquire tenements and the capitalised exploration costs of those tenements. Financial 
assets including cash and cash equivalents, and investments in financial assets, are reported in the Treasury segment. 

b. Basis of accounting for purposes of reporting by operating segments 

i. Accounting policies adopted 

Unless stated otherwise, all amounts reported to the Board of Directors, being the chief decision maker with respect to 
operating segments, are determined in accordance with accounting policies that are consistent to those adopted in the 
annual financial statements of the Group. 

ii. Inter-segment transactions 

An internally determined transfer price is set for all inter-segment sales. This price is reset quarterly and is based on 
ǿƘŀǘ ǿƻǳƭŘ ōŜ ǊŜŀƭƛǎŜŘ ƛƴ ǘƘŜ ŜǾŜƴǘ ǘƘŜ ǎŀƭŜ ǿŀǎ ƳŀŘŜ ǘƻ ŀƴ ŜȄǘŜǊƴŀƭ ǇŀǊǘȅ ŀǘ ŀǊƳΩǎ ƭŜƴƎǘƘΦ !ƭƭ ǎǳŎƘ ǘǊŀƴǎŀŎǘƛƻƴǎ ŀǊŜ 
ŜƭƛƳƛƴŀǘŜŘ ƻƴ ŎƻƴǎƻƭƛŘŀǘƛƻƴ ƻŦ ǘƘŜ DǊƻǳǇΩǎ ŦƛƴŀƴŎƛŀƭ ǎǘŀǘŜƳŜƴǘǎΦ 

Corporate charges are allocated to reporting segmenǘǎ ōŀǎŜŘ ƻƴ ǘƘŜ ǎŜƎƳŜƴǘǎΩ ƻǾŜǊŀƭƭ ǇǊƻǇƻǊǘƛƻƴ ƻŦ ǊŜǾŜƴǳŜ 
generation within the Group. The Board of Directors believes this is representative of likely consumption of head office 
expenditure that should be used in assessing segment performance and cost recoveries. 

Inter-segment loans payable and receivable are initially recognised at the consideration received/to be received net of 
transaction costs. If inter-segment loans receivable and payable are not on commercial terms, these are not adjusted to 
fair value based on market interest rates. This policy represents a departure from that applied to the statutory financial 
statements. 

iii. Segment assets 

Where an asset is used across multiple segments, the asset is allocated to that segment that receives majority 
economic value from that asset. In the majority of instances, segment assets are clearly identifiable on the basis of their 
nature and physical location. 

iv. Segment liabilities 

Liabilities are allocated to segments where there is a direct nexus between the incurrence of the liability and the 
operations of the segment. Borrowings and tax liabilities are generally considered to relate to the Group as a whole and 
are not allocated. Segment liabilities include trade and other payables and certain direct borrowings. 

v. Unallocated items 

The following items of revenue, expenses, assets and liabilities are not allocated to operating segments as they are not 
considered part of the core operations of any segment: 

 Impairment of assets and other non-recurring items of revenue or expense 

 Income tax expense 

 Current and deferred tax assets and liabilities 

 Other financial liabilities 
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Note  22 Operating segments (cont.) 

For the Year to 30 June 2017 Australian 

 Exploration 

$ 

African  

Exploration 

$ 

 

Total 

$ 

Segment revenue and other income 180,606 - 180,606 

Segment Results 180,606 - 180,606 

Amounts not included in segment results but reviewed by Board:   - 

Expenses not directly allocable to identifiable segments or areas of 
interest 

 
  

4 Business development (123,918) - (123,918) 

4 Compliance and regulatory costs (140,601) 5,896 (134,705) 

4 Director remuneration excluding consulting fees (114,856) - (114,856) 

4 Exploration and rehabilitation (expenditure) / recovered 6,327 - 6,327 

4 Finance costs ( 284) - ( 284) 

4 Funds garnished by Congolese Government - (30,773) (30,773) 

4 Legal and consulting fees (38,410) - (38,410) 

4 Other expenses  (31,782) (2,410) (34,192) 

4 Income tax expense - - - 

Loss after Income Tax 
 

 (290,205) 

   - 

As at 30 June 2017    

Segment Assets 739,443 16,692 756,135 

Unallocated Assets:    

4 Trade and other receivables   6,617 

Total Assets   762,752 

   - 

Segment Liabilities 191,799 396 192,195 

Unallocated Liabilities:    

4 Other payables    

4 Short-term borrowings   8,984 

Total Liabilities  - 201,179 
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Note  22 Operating segments (cont.) 

For the Year to 30 June 2016 Australian 

 Exploration 

$ 

African  

Exploration 

$ 

 

Total 

$ 

Segment revenue and other income 8,902 - 8,902 

Segment Results 8,902 - 8,902 

Amounts not included in segment results but reviewed by Board:    

Expenses not directly allocable to identifiable segments or areas of 
interest 

 
  

4 Business development (267,530) (1,150) (268,680) 

4 Compliance  (129,440) (33,762) (163,202) 

4 Director remuneration excluding consulting fees (180,470) - (180,470) 

4 Exploration and rehabilitation (expenditure) / recovered (11,500) (68,915) (80,415) 

4 Finance costs (3,712) - (3,712) 

4 Legal fee and consulting fees (6,060) (2,666) (8,726) 

4 Other expenses  (19,705) (4,665) (24,370) 

4 Income tax expense - - - 

Loss after Income Tax 
 

- (720,673) 

    

As at 30 June 2016    

Segment Assets 703,845 45,218 749,063 

Unallocated Assets:    

4 Trade and other receivables   13,037 

4 Other non-current assets   14,630 

Total Assets   776,730 

   - 

Segment Liabilities 230,615 385 231,000 

Unallocated Liabilities:    

4 Other payables   22,432 

Total Liabilities  - 253,432 
 

Note  23 Commitments 2017 

 $ 

2016 

 $ 

a. Exploration expenditure commitments:    

Exploration expenditure committed to:    

Exploration tenement minimum expenditure requirements  77,590 - 

b. Payable:    

Current
 

 15,518 - 

Longer than 1 year but not longer than 5 years
 

 62,072 - 

Longer than 5 years  - - 

  77,590 - 
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Note  24 Financial risk management 

a. Financial Risk Management Policies 

This note prŜǎŜƴǘǎ ƛƴŦƻǊƳŀǘƛƻƴ ŀōƻǳǘ ǘƘŜ DǊƻǳǇΩǎ ŜȄǇƻǎǳǊŜ ǘƻ ŜŀŎƘ ƻŦ ǘƘŜ ŀōƻǾŜ ǊƛǎƪǎΣ ƛǘǎ ƻōƧŜŎǘƛǾŜǎΣ policies and 
procedures for measuring and managing risk, and the management of capital. 

¢ƘŜ DǊƻǳǇΩǎ ŦƛƴŀƴŎƛŀƭ ƛƴǎǘǊǳƳŜƴǘǎ Ŏƻƴǎƛǎǘ mainly of deposits with banks and accounts payable and receivable. 

The Group does not speculate in the trading of derivative instruments. 

! ǎǳƳƳŀǊȅ ƻŦ ǘƘŜ DǊƻǳǇΩǎ CƛƴŀƴŎƛŀƭ !ǎǎŜǘǎ ŀƴŘ [ƛŀōƛƭƛǘƛŜǎ ƛǎ ǎƘƻǿƴ ōŜƭƻǿΥ 
 

 

 

Floating 

Interest 

Rate 

Fixed 

Interest 

Rate 

Non- 

interest  

Bearing 

 

 2017  

Total 

Floating 

Interest 

Rate 

Fixed 

Interest 

Rate 

Non- 

interest  

Bearing 

 

 2016 

Total 

 $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ 

Financial Assets         

4 Cash and cash equivalents  534,262 - - 534,262 502,063 - - 502,063 

4 Trade and other receivables - - 217,659 217,659 - - 260,037 260,037 

Total Financial Assets 534,262 - 217,659 751,921 502,063 - 260,037 762,100 
         

Financial Liabilities         

Financial liabilities at 

amortised cost          

4 Trade and other payables - - 108,195 108,195 - - 109,893 109,893 

4 Borrowings - 8,984 - 8,984 - - - - 

Total Financial Liabilities - 8,984 108,195 117,179 - - 109,893 109,893 

Net Financial Assets 534,262 (8,984) 109,464 634,742 502,063 - 150,144  652,207 

 

b. Specific Financial Risk Exposures and Management 

The main risk the Group is exposed to through its financial instruments are credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk 
consisting of interest rate, foreign currency risk and equity price risk. 

The Board has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the risk management framework. The Board 
adopts practices designed to identify significant areas of business risk and to effectively manage those risks in accordance 
ǿƛǘƘ ǘƘŜ DǊƻǳǇΩǎ Ǌƛǎƪ ǇǊƻŦƛƭŜΦ ¢Ƙƛǎ ƛƴŎƭǳŘŜǎ ŀǎǎŜǎǎƛƴƎΣ ƳƻƴƛǘƻǊƛƴƎ ŀƴŘ ƳŀƴŀƎƛƴƎ Ǌƛǎƪǎ ŦƻǊ ǘƘŜ DǊƻǳǇ ŀƴŘ ǎŜǘǘƛƴƎ ŀǇǇǊƻǇǊƛŀǘŜ 
risk limits and controls. The Group is not of a size nor is its affairs of such complexity to justify the establishment of a formal 
system for risk management and associated controls. Instead, the Board approves all expenditure, is intimately acquainted 
with all operations and discuss all relevant issues at the Board meetings. The operational and other compliance risk 
management have also been assessed and found to be operating efficiently and effectively.  

i. Credit risk 

Exposure to credit risk relating to financial assets arises largely from cash at bank. 

The Group does not have any material credit risk exposure to any single receivable or group of receivables under 
financial instruments entered into by the Group.  

The objective of the Group is to minimise the risk of loss from credit risk. Although revenue from operations is minimal, 
the Group trades only with creditworthy third parties.  

In addition, receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing basis with the rŜǎǳƭǘ ǘƘŀǘ ǘƘŜ DǊƻǳǇΩǎ ŜȄǇƻǎǳǊŜ ǘƻ ōŀŘ 
ŘŜōǘǎ ƛǎ ƛƴǎƛƎƴƛŦƛŎŀƴǘΦ ¢ƘŜ DǊƻǳǇΩǎ ƳŀȄƛƳǳƳ ŎǊŜŘƛǘ Ǌƛǎƪ ŜȄǇƻǎǳǊŜ ƛǎ ƭƛƳƛǘŜŘ ǘƻ ǘƘŜ ŎŀǊǊȅƛƴƎ ǾŀƭǳŜ ƻŦ ƛǘǎ ŦƛƴŀƴŎƛŀƭ ŀǎǎŜǘǎ ŀǎ 
indicated on the statement of financial position. 

The Group establishes an allowance for impairment that represents its estimate of incurred losses in respect of trade 
and other receivables. 

5ǳǊƛƴƎ ǘƘŜ ŦƛƴŀƴŎƛŀƭ ȅŜŀǊΣ ǘƘŜ DǊƻǳǇΩǎ /ƻƴƎƻƭŜǎŜ ōŀƴƪ ŀŎŎƻǳƴǘ ŦǳƴŘǎ ƻŦ Ϸ30,773 were amongst other ŘŜǇƻǎƛǘƻǊǎΩ funds 
garnished by Congolese Government due to the dissolution of the Banque Internationale pour l'Afrique au Congo. The 
Group is exploring legal action to recover these funds. 
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Note  24  Financial risk management (cont.) 

 Credit risk exposures 

The maximum exposure to credit risk is that to its alliance partners and that is limited to the carrying amount, net 
of any provisions for impairment of those assets, as disclosed in the statement of financial position and notes to the 
financial statements.  

Credit risk related to balances with banks and other financial institutions is managed by the Group in accordance 
with approved Board policy. Such policy requires that surplus funds are only invested with financial institutions 
residing in Australia, where ever possible. 

 Impairment losses 

The Group has not material items past due and not impaired. Other receivables include environmental bonds 
($211,042). The ultimate recoupment of the environmental bonds is dependent on the completion, to the 
satisfaction of the Department of Mines and Petroleum, of rehabilitation of the relevant sites. 

ii. Liquidity risk 

Liquidity risk arises from the possibility that the Group might encounter difficulty in settling its debts or otherwise 
meeting its obligations related to financial liabilities. 

The Group manages liquidity risk by continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash flows and ensuring sufficient cash 
and marketable securities are available to meet the current and future commitments of the Group. Due to the nature 
ƻŦ ǘƘŜ DǊƻǳǇΩǎ ŀŎǘƛǾƛǘƛŜǎΣ ōŜƛƴƎ ƳƛƴŜǊŀƭ ŜȄǇƭƻǊŀǘƛƻƴΣ ǘƘŜ DǊƻǳǇ ŘƻŜǎ ƴƻǘ ƘŀǾŜ ǊŜŀŘȅ ŀŎŎŜǎǎ ǘƻ ŎǊŜŘƛǘ ŦŀŎƛƭƛǘƛŜǎΣ ǿƛǘƘ ǘƘŜ 
primary source of funding being equity raisings. 

[ƛǉǳƛŘƛǘȅ Ǌƛǎƪ ƛǎ ǘƘŜ Ǌƛǎƪ ǘƘŀǘ ǘƘŜ DǊƻǳǇ ǿƛƭƭ ƴƻǘ ōŜ ŀōƭŜ ǘƻ ƳŜŜǘ ƛǘǎ ŦƛƴŀƴŎƛŀƭ ƻōƭƛƎŀǘƛƻƴǎ ŀǎ ǘƘŜȅ Ŧŀƭƭ ŘǳŜΦ ¢ƘŜ DǊƻǳǇΩǎ 
approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its 
liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking 
ŘŀƳŀƎŜ ǘƻ ǘƘŜ DǊƻǳǇΩǎ ǊŜǇǳǘŀǘƛƻƴΦ 

Typically the Group ensures that it has sufficient cash to meet expected operational expenses for a period of 60 days, 
including the servicing of financial obligations; this excludes the potential impact of extreme circumstances that cannot 
reasonably be predicted, such as natural disasters. 

The financial liabilities of the Group are confined to trade and other payables as disclosed in the statement of financial 
position. All trade and other payables are non-interest bearing and due within 30 days of the reporting date. 

 Contractual Maturities 

The following are the contractual maturities of financial liabilities of the Group: 
 

 Within 1 Year Greater Than 1 Year Total 

 2017 

$ 

2016 

$ 

2017 

$ 

2016 

$ 

2017 

$ 

2016 

$ 

Financial liabilities due for payment       

Trade and other payables 108,195 109,893 - - 108,195 109,893 

Borrowings 8,984 - - - 8,984 - 

Total contractual outflows 117,179 109,893 - - 117,179 109,893 

Financial assets       

Cash and cash equivalents  534,262 502,063 - - 534,262 502,063 

Trade and other receivables 6,617 13,037 211,042 247,000 217,659 260,037 

Total anticipated inflows 540,879 515,100 211,042 247,000 751,921 762,100 

Net inflow on financial instruments 423,700 405,207 211,042 247,000 634,742 652,207 
 

It is not expected that the cash flows included in the maturity analysis could occur significantly earlier or at 
significantly different amounts. 

iii. Market risk 

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates and equity prices will 
ŀŦŦŜŎǘ ǘƘŜ DǊƻǳǇΩǎ ƛƴŎƻƳŜ ƻǊ ǘƘŜ ǾŀƭǳŜ ƻŦ ƛǘǎ ƘƻƭŘƛƴƎǎ ƻŦ ŦƛƴŀƴŎƛŀƭ ƛƴǎǘǊǳƳŜƴǘǎΦ ¢ƘŜ ƻōƧŜŎǘƛǾŜ ƻŦ ƳŀǊƪŜǘ Ǌƛǎƪ 
management is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimising the 
return. 
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Note  24  Financial risk management (cont.) 

¢ƘŜ .ƻŀǊŘ ƳŜŜǘǎ ƻƴ ŀ ǊŜƎǳƭŀǊ ōŀǎƛǎ ŀƴŘ ŎƻƴǎƛŘŜǊǎ ǘƘŜ DǊƻǳǇΩǎ ŜȄǇƻǎǳǊŜ ŎǳǊǊŜƴŎȅ ŀƴŘ ƛƴǘŜǊŜǎǘ ǊŀǘŜ ǊƛǎƪΦ 

(1) Interest rate risk 

Exposure to interest rate risk arises on financial assets and financial liabilities recognised at the end of the 
reporting period whereby a future change in interest rates will affect future cash flows or the fair value of fixed 
rate financial instruments. The Group is also exposed to earnings volatility on floating rate instruments. 

Interest rate risk is not material to the Group as no debt arrangements have been entered into, and movement in 
ƛƴǘŜǊŜǎǘ ǊŀǘŜǎ ƻƴ ǘƘŜ DǊƻǳǇΩǎ ŦƛƴŀƴŎƛŀƭ ŀǎǎŜǘǎ ƛǎ ƴƻǘ ƳŀǘŜǊƛŀƭΦ 

(2) Foreign exchange risk 

Exposure to foreign exchange risk may result in the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument 
fluctuating due to movement in foreign exchange rates of currencies in which the Group holds financial 
instruments which are other than the AUD functional currency of the Group. 

With instruments being held by overseas operations, fluctuations ƛƴ ŦƻǊŜƛƎƴ ŎǳǊǊŜƴŎƛŜǎ Ƴŀȅ ƛƳǇŀŎǘ ƻƴ ǘƘŜ DǊƻǳǇΩǎ 
ŦƛƴŀƴŎƛŀƭ ǊŜǎǳƭǘǎΦ ¢ƘŜ DǊƻǳǇΩǎ ŜȄǇƻǎǳǊŜ ǘƻ ŦƻǊŜƛƎƴ ŜȄŎƘŀƴƎŜ Ǌƛǎƪ ƛǎ ƳƛƴƛƳŀƭΤ ƘƻǿŜǾŜǊ ǘƘŜ .ƻŀǊŘ ŎƻƴǘƛƴǳŜǎ ǘƻ ǊŜǾƛŜǿ 
this exposure regularly. 

(3) Price risk 

Price risk relates to the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because 
of changes in market prices. 

iv. Sensitivity Analyses 

(1) Interest rates 

¢ƘŜ ŦƻƭƭƻǿƛƴƎ ǘŀōƭŜ ƛƭƭǳǎǘǊŀǘŜǎ ǎŜƴǎƛǘƛǾƛǘƛŜǎ ǘƻ ǘƘŜ DǊƻǳǇΩǎ ŜȄǇƻǎǳǊŜǎ ǘƻ ŎƘŀƴƎŜǎ ƛƴ ƛƴǘŜǊŜǎǘ ǊŀǘŜǎΦ ¢ƘŜ ǘŀōƭŜ ƛƴŘƛŎŀǘŜǎ 
the impact on how profit and equity values reported at balance sheet date would have been affected by changes in 
the relevant risk variable that management considers to be reasonably possible. These sensitivities assume that 
the movement in a particular variable is independent of other variables. 

A change of 100 basis points in the interest rates at the reporting date would have increased / (decreased) equity 
and profit or loss by the amounts shown below. The analysis is performed on the same basis for 2016. 

  Profit 

$ 

Equity 

$ 

 Year ended 30 June 2017   

 ±100 basis points change in interest rates ± 5,343 ± 5,343 

 Year ended 30 June 2016   

 ±100 basis points change in interest rates ± 5,021 ± 5,021 

 

(2) Foreign exchange  

The Group did not carry significant assets or liabilities in foreign currencies in the 2017 financial year (2016: nil), 
and therefore was not subject to material foreign exchange risk, and according not subject to material sensitivities. 

v. Net Fair Values 

(1) Fair value estimation 

The fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities are presented in the table in note 24a and can be 
compared to their carrying values as presented in the statement of financial position. Fair values are those 
amounts at which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled, between knowledgeable, willing parties in an 
ŀǊƳΩǎ ƭŜƴƎǘƘ ǘǊŀƴǎŀŎǘƛƻƴΦ 

Cash and cash equivalents, trade and other receivables, and trade and other payables are short-term investments 
in nature whose carrying value is equivalent to fair value. 

The methods and assumptions used in determining the fair values of financial instruments are disclosed in the 
accounting policy notes specific to the asset or liability. 

 



BLINA MINERALS NL 

AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES 

ABN 25 086 471 007 

ANNUAL REPORT 30 JUNE 2017 

P a g e | 44 

Notes to the consolidated financial statements  
for the year ended 30 June 2017 
 

Note  25 Parent entity disclosures  Note 2017 

 $ 

2016 

 $ 

a. Financial Position of Blina Minerals NL    

Current assets    

Cash and cash equivalents  518,476 456,845 

Trade and other receivables  6,385 10,725 

Prepayments  9,925 13,750 

Total current assets  534,786 481,320 

Non-current assets    

Trade and other receivables  211,042 247,000 

Financial assets 25b 26,495 26,495 

Total non-current assets  237,537 273,495 

Total assets  772,323 754,815 

Current liabilities    

Trade and other payables  107,798 109,507 

Short-term provisions  28,000 66,651 

Borrowings  8,984 - 

Total current liabilities  144,782 176,158 

Non-current liabilities    

Long-term provisions  56,000 76,888 

Total non-current liabilities  56,000 76,888 

Total liabilities  200,782  253,046  

Net assets  571,541 501,769 

Equity    

Issued capital  34,142,427 33,854,887 

Reserves  143,620 102,078 

Accumulated losses  (33,714,506) (33,455,196) 

Total equity  571,541 501,769 

b. Financial assets of Blina Minerals NL    

Loans to subsidiaries  643,372 792,576 

Less: Provision for impairment  (643,372) (792,576) 

Shares in controlled entities at cost  26,495 26,495 

Net carrying value  26,495 26,495 

c. Financial performance of Blina Minerals NL    

Profit / (loss) for the year   (259,728) 723,477 

Total comprehensive income  (259,728) 723,477 

d. Guarantees entered into by Blina Minerals NL for the debts of its subsidiaries 

There are no guarantees entered into by Blina Minerals NL for the debts of its subsidiaries as at 30 June 2017 (2016: none). 
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BRETT FRASER 

Chairman 

Dated this Tuesday, 19 September 2017 

 

  

Directorsõ declaration 

 
 

The directors of the Company declare that: 

1. the financial statements and notes, as set out on pages 14 to 44, are in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001 (Cth) 
and: 

 (a) comply with Accounting Standards;  

 (b) are in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards issued by the International Accounting Standards 
Board, as stated in note 1 to the financial statements; and 

 (c) give a true and fair view of the financial position as at 30 June 2017 and of the performance for the year ended on 
that date of the Company and Group. 

2. the Chief Executive Officer (equivalent) and Chief Financial Officer (equivalent) have each declared that: 

 (a) the financial records of the Company for the financial year have been properly maintained in accordance with s 286 of 
the Corporations Act 2001 (Cth); 

 (b) the financial statements and notes for the financial year comply with the Accounting Standards; and 

 (c) the financial statements and notes for the financial year give a true and fair view. 

3. ƛƴ ǘƘŜ ŘƛǊŜŎǘƻǊǎΩ ƻǇƛƴƛƻƴ ǘƘŜǊŜ ŀǊŜ ǊŜŀǎƻƴŀōƭŜ ƎǊƻǳƴŘǎ ǘƻ ōŜƭƛŜǾŜ ǘƘŀǘ ǘƘŜ /ƻƳǇŀƴȅ ǿƛƭƭ ōŜ ŀōƭŜ ǘƻ Ǉŀȅ ƛǘǎ ŘŜōǘǎ ŀǎ ŀƴŘ 
when they become due and payable. 

This declaration is made in accordance with a resolution of the Board of Directors and is signed for and on behalf of the 
directors by: 
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Independent auditor's report  

 

TO BE REPLACED BY NEXIA REPORT 

 
  



BLINA MINERALS NL 

AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES 

ABN 25 086 471 007 

ANNUAL REPORT 30 JUNE 2017 

P a g e | 47 

Corporate governance statement 

 

This Corporate Governance summary discloses the extent to which the Company will follow the recommendations set by the 
!{· /ƻǊǇƻǊŀǘŜ DƻǾŜǊƴŀƴŎŜ /ƻǳƴŎƛƭ ƛƴ ƛǘǎ ǇǳōƭƛŎŀǘƛƻƴ Ψ/ƻǊǇƻǊŀǘŜ Governance Principles and Recommendations (3

rd
 9ŘƛǘƛƻƴύΩ 

(Recommendations). The Recommendations are not mandatory, however, the Recommendations that will not be followed 
have been identified and reasons have been provided for not following them. 

The CompanȅΩǎ /ƻǊǇƻǊŀǘŜ DƻǾŜǊƴŀƴŎŜ tƭŀƴ Ƙŀǎ ōŜŜƴ ǇƻǎǘŜŘ ƻƴ ǘƘŜ /ƻƳǇŀƴȅΩǎ ǿŜōǎƛǘŜ ŀǘ www.blinaminerals.com.au.  

Principles And Recommendations Comply Explanation 

Principle 1: Lay solid foundations for management and oversight 

Recommendation 1.1  

A listed entity should have and disclose a charter which: 

(a) sets out the respective roles and responsibilities of 
the board, the chair and management; and 

(b) includes a description of those matters expressly 
reserved to the board and those delegated to 
management. 

Complying The Company has adopted a Board Charter.  

The Board Charter sets out the specific responsibilities of the Board, 
requirements as to the Boards composition, the roles and 
responsibilities of the Chairman and Company Secretary, the 
establishment, operation and management of Board Committees, 
Directors access to company records and information, details of the 
.ƻŀǊŘΩǎ ǊŜƭŀǘƛƻƴǎƘƛǇ ǿƛǘƘ ƳŀƴŀƎŜƳŜƴǘΣ ŘŜǘŀƛƭǎ ƻŦ ǘƘŜ .ƻŀǊŘΩǎ 
ǇŜǊŦƻǊƳŀƴŎŜ ǊŜǾƛŜǿ ŀƴŘ ŘŜǘŀƛƭǎ ƻŦ ǘƘŜ .ƻŀǊŘΩǎ Řisclosure policy.  

! ŎƻǇȅ ƻŦ ǘƘŜ /ƻƳǇŀƴȅΩǎ .ƻŀǊŘ /ƘŀǊǘŜǊ ƛǎ ŀǾŀƛƭŀōƭŜ ƻƴ ǘƘŜ /ƻƳǇŀƴȅΩǎ 
website. 

Recommendation 1.2 

A listed entity should: 

(a) undertake appropriate checks before appointing a 
person, or putting forward to security holders a 
candidate for election, as a director; and 

(b) provide security holders with all material information 
relevant to a decision on whether or not to elect or re-
elect a director. 

Complying (a) The Company has detailed guidelines for the appointment and 
selection of the Board. The /ƻƳǇŀƴȅΩǎ /ƻǊǇƻǊŀǘŜ DƻǾŜǊƴŀƴŎŜ 
Plan requires the Board to undertake appropriate checks before 
appointing a person, or putting forward to security holders a 
candidate for election, as a director. 

(b) Material information relevant to any decision on whether or not 
to elect or re-elect a Director will be provided to security holders 
in the notice of meeting holding the resolution to elect or re-
elect the Director.  

Recommendation 1.3 

A listed entity should have a written agreement with each 
director and senior executive setting out the terms of their 
appointment. 

Complying ¢ƘŜ /ƻƳǇŀƴȅΩǎ /ƻǊǇƻǊŀǘŜ DƻǾŜǊƴŀƴŎŜ tƭŀƴ ǊŜǉǳƛǊŜǎ ǘƘŜ .ƻŀǊŘ ǘƻ 
ensure that each Director and senior executive is a party to a written 
agreement with the Company which sets out the terms of that 
5ƛǊŜŎǘƻǊΩǎ ƻǊ ǎŜƴƛƻǊ ŜȄŜŎǳǘƛǾŜΩǎ ŀǇǇƻƛƴǘƳŜƴǘΦ   

 

Recommendation 1.4 

The company secretary of a listed entity should be accountable 
directly to the board, through the chair, on all matters to do 
with the proper functioning of the board. 

Complying The Board Charter outlines the roles, responsibility and accountability 
of the Company Secretary. The Company Secretary is accountable 
directly to the Board, through the chair, on all matters to do with the 
proper functioning of the Board.  

Recommendation 1.5 

A listed entity should: 

(a) have a diversity policy which includes requirements for 
the board: 

(i) to set measurable objectives for achieving gender 
diversity; and 

(ii) to assess annually both the objectives and the 
ŜƴǘƛǘȅΩǎ ǇǊƻƎǊŜǎǎ ƛƴ ŀŎƘƛŜǾƛƴƎ ǘƘŜƳΤ 

(b) disclose that policy or a summary or it; and 

(c) disclose as at the end of each reporting period: 

(i) the measurable objectives for achieving gender 
diversity set by the board in accordance with the 
ŜƴǘƛǘȅΩǎ ŘƛǾŜǊǎƛǘȅ ǇƻƭƛŎȅ ŀƴŘ ƛǘǎ ǇǊƻƎǊŜǎǎ ǘƻǿŀǊŘǎ 
achieving them; and 

(ii) either: 

(A) the respective proportions of men and women 
on the board, in senior executive positions and 
across the whole organisation (including how 
ǘƘŜ Ŝƴǘƛǘȅ Ƙŀǎ ŘŜŦƛƴŜŘ άǎŜƴƛƻǊ ŜȄŜŎǳǘƛǾŜέ ŦƻǊ 
these purposes); or 

(B) ǘƘŜ ŜƴǘƛǘȅΩǎ άDŜƴŘŜǊ 9ǉǳŀƭƛǘȅ LƴŘƛŎŀǘƻǊǎέΣ ŀǎ 
defined in the Workplace Gender Equality Act 
2012. 

Complying (a) The Company has adopted a Diversity Policy.  

(i) The Diversity Policy provides a framework for the 
Company to achieve a list of 6 measurable objectives that 
encompass gender equality.  

(ii) The Diversity Policy provides for the monitoring and 
evaluation of the scope and currency of the Diversity 
Policy. The company is responsible for implementing, 
monitoring and reporting on the measurable objectives.   

(b) The Diversity Policy is stated in Schedule 9 of the Corporate 
Governance Plan which is available on the company website.  

(c)  

(i) The measurable objectives set by the Board will be 
included in the annual key performance indicators for the 
CEO, MD and senior executives. In addition the Board will 
review progress against the objectives in its annual 
performance assessment.  

(ii) The Board will include in the annual report each year, the 
measurable objectives, progress against the objectives, 
and the proportion of male and female employees in the 
whole organisation, at senior management level and at 
Board Level.  

 

http://www.blinaminerals.com.au/
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Principles And Recommendations Comply Explanation 

Recommendation 1.6  

A listed entity should: 

(a) have and disclose a process for periodically evaluating 
the performance of the board, its committees and 
individual directors; and 

(b) disclose in relation to each reporting period, whether a 
performance evaluation was undertaken in the 
reporting period in accordance with that process. 

Complying (a) The Board is responsible for evaluating the performance of the 
Board and individual directors on an annual basis. It may do so 
with the aid of an independent advisor. The process for this can 
be found in the Performance Evaluation Policy document which 
ƛǎ ŀǾŀƛƭŀōƭŜ ƻƴ ǘƘŜ /ƻƳǇŀƴȅΩǎ ǿŜōǎƛǘŜΦ 

(b) ¢ƘŜ /ƻƳǇŀƴȅΩǎ tŜǊŦƻǊƳŀƴŎŜ 9Ǿŀƭǳŀǘƛƻƴ Policy requires the 
Board to disclosure whether or not performance evaluations 
were conducted during the relevant reporting period..  

Recommendation 1.7 

A listed entity should: 

(a) have and disclose a process for periodically evaluating 
the performance of its senior executives; and 

(b) disclose in relation to each reporting period, whether a 
performance evaluation was undertaken in the 
reporting period in accordance with that process.  

Complying (a) The Board is responsible for evaluating the performance of 
senior executives. The Board is to arrange an annual 
performance evaluation of the senior executives.  

(b) ¢ƘŜ /ƻƳǇŀƴȅΩǎ tŜǊŦƻǊƳŀƴŎŜ 9Ǿŀƭǳŀǘƛƻƴ tƻƭƛŎȅ ǊŜǉǳƛǊŜǎ ǘƘŜ 
Board to conduct annual performance of the senior executives. 
The Policy requires the Board to disclose whether or not 
performance evaluations were conducted during the relevant 
reporting period.  

Principle 2: Structure the board to add value 

Recommendation 2.1  

The board of a listed entity should: 

(a) have a nomination committee which: 

(i) has at least three members, a majority of 
whom are independent directors; and 

(ii) is chaired by an independent director, 

and disclose: 

(iii) the charter of the committee; 

(iv) the members of the committee; and 

(v) as at the end of each reporting period, the 
number of times the committee met 
throughout the period and the individual 
attendances of the members at those 
meetings; or 

(b) if it does not have a nomination committee, disclose 
that fact and the processes it employs to address 
board succession issues and to ensure that the board 
has the appropriate balance of skills, experience, 
independence and knowledge of the entity to enable it 
to discharge its duties and responsibilities effectively. 

Complying (b) Due to the size and nature of the existing Board and the 

ƳŀƎƴƛǘǳŘŜ ƻŦ ǘƘŜ /ƻƳǇŀƴȅΩǎ ƻǇŜǊŀǘƛƻƴǎ ǘƘŜ /ƻƳǇŀƴȅ ŎǳǊǊŜƴǘƭȅ 

has no Nomination Committee. Pursuant to clause 4(h) of the 

/ƻƳǇŀƴȅΩǎ .ƻŀǊŘ /ƘŀǊǘŜǊΣ ǘƘŜ Ŧǳƭƭ .ƻŀǊŘ ŎŀǊǊƛŜǎ ƻǳǘ ǘƘŜ ŘǳǘƛŜǎ 

that would ordinarily be assigned to the Nomination Committee 

under the written terms of reference for that committee. 

The duties of the Nomination Committee are outlined in 
{ŎƘŜŘǳƭŜ р ƻŦ ǘƘŜ /ƻƳǇŀƴȅΩǎ /ƻǊǇƻǊŀǘŜ DƻǾŜǊƴŀƴŎŜ tƭŀƴ 
available online  

The Board devotes time at each board meeting to discuss board 
succession issues. All members of the Board are involved in the 
/ƻƳǇŀƴȅΩǎ ƴƻƳƛƴŀǘƛƻƴ ǇǊƻŎŜǎǎΣ ǘƻ ǘƘŜ ƳŀȄƛƳǳƳ ŜȄǘŜƴǘ 
permitted under the Corporations Act and ASX Listing Rules.  

¢ƘŜ .ƻŀǊŘ ǊŜƎǳƭŀǊƭȅ ǳǇŘŀǘŜǎ ǘƘŜ /ƻƳǇŀƴȅΩǎ ōƻŀǊŘ ǎƪƛƭƭǎ ƳŀǘǊƛȄ 
(in accordance with recommendation 2.2) to assess the 
appropriate balance of skills, experience, independence and 
knowledge of the entity. 

Recommendation 2.2 

A listed entity should have and disclose a board skill matrix 
setting out the mix of skills and diversity that the board 
currently has or is looking to achieve in its membership. 

Complying Board Skills Matrix Number of Directors 
that Meet the Skill 

Executive & Non- Executive experience 3 

Industry experience & knowledge  3 

Leadership 3 

Corporate governance & risk management 3 

Strategic thinking 3 

Desired behavioural competencies 3 

Geographic experience 3 

Capital Markets experience 3 

Subject matter expertise:  

- accounting 2 

- capital management 3 

- corporate financing 3 

- industry taxation 1 0 

- risk management 3 

- legal 3 

- IT expertise 2 0 

(1) Skill gap noticed however an external taxation firm is employed 
to maintain taxation requirements. 

(2) Skill gap noticed however an external IT firm is employed on an 
adhoc basis to maintain IT requirements. 
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Recommendation 2.3 

A listed entity should disclose: 

(a) the names of the directors considered by the board to 
be independent directors; 

(b) if a director has an interest, position, association or 
relationship of the type described in Box 2.3 of the ASX 
Corporate Governance Principles and 
Recommendation (3rd Edition), but the board is of the 
opinion that it does not compromise the 
independence of the director, the nature of the 
interest, position, association or relationship in 
question and an explanation of why the board is of 
that opinion; and 

(c) the length of service of each director 

Complying (a) The Board Charter provides for the disclosure of the names of 
Directors considered by the Board to be independent. Due to 
the size and nature of the existing Board and the magnitude of 
ǘƘŜ /ƻƳǇŀƴȅΩǎ ƻǇŜǊŀǘƛƻƴǎ ǘhe Company currently has no 
independent directors.  

(b) The Board Charter requires Directors to disclose their interest, 
positions, associations and relationships and requires that the 
independence of Directors is regularly assessed by the Board in 
light of the interests disclosed by Directors. Details of the 
Directors interests, positions associations and relationships are 
provided in the Annual Reports and Company website. 

(c) The Board Charter provides for the determination of the 
5ƛǊŜŎǘƻǊǎΩ ǘŜǊƳǎ ŀƴŘ ǊŜǉǳƛǊŜǎ ǘƘŜ ƭŜƴƎǘƘ ƻŦ ǎŜǊǾƛŎŜ ƻŦ ŜŀŎƘ 
Director to be disclosed. The length of service of each Director is 
provided in the Directors Report in the Annual Reports.  

Recommendation 2.4 

A majority of the board of a listed entity should be 
independent directors. 

Not 
complying 

The Board Charter requires that where practical the majority of the 
Board will be independent. Due to the size and nature of the existing 
Board and the magnitude of the /ƻƳǇŀƴȅΩǎ ƻǇŜǊŀǘƛƻƴǎ ǘƘŜ /ƻƳǇŀƴȅ 
currently has no independent directors.  

5Ŝǘŀƛƭǎ ƻŦ ŜŀŎƘ 5ƛǊŜŎǘƻǊΩǎ ƛƴŘŜǇŜƴŘŜƴŎŜ ŀǊŜ ǇǊƻǾƛŘŜŘ ƛƴ ǘƘŜ !ƴƴǳŀƭ 
Reports and Company website. 

Recommendation 2.5 

The chair of the board of a listed entity should be an 
independent director and, in particular, should not be the 
same person as the CEO of the entity. 

Not 
complying 

The Board Charter provides that where practical, the Chairman of the 
Board will be a non-executive director.  

Due to the size and nature of the existing Board and the magnitude of 
ǘƘŜ /ƻƳǇŀƴȅΩǎ ƻǇŜǊŀǘƛƻƴǎ ǘƘŜ /ƻƳǇŀƴȅ ŎǳǊǊŜƴǘƭȅ Ƙŀǎ ƴƻ ƛƴŘŜǇŜƴŘŜƴǘ 
directors 

Recommendation 2.6 

A listed entity should have a program for inducting new 
directors and providing appropriate professional 
development opportunities for continuing directors to 
develop and maintain the skills and knowledge needed to 
perform their role as a director effectively. 

Complying The Board Charter states that a specific responsibility of the Board is 
to procure appropriate professional development opportunities for 
Directors. The Board is responsible for the approval and review of 
induction and continuing professional development programs and 
procedures for Directors to ensure that they can effectively discharge 
their responsibilities.  

Principle 3: Act ethically and responsibly 

Recommendation 3.1  

A listed entity should: 

(a) have a code of conduct for its directors, senior 
executives and employees; and 

(b) disclose that code or a summary of it. 

Complying (a) The Corporate Code of Conduct applies to the /ƻƳǇŀƴȅΩǎ 
directors, senior executives and employees. 

(b) ¢ƘŜ /ƻƳǇŀƴȅΩǎ /ƻǊǇƻǊŀǘŜ /ƻŘŜ ƻŦ /ƻƴŘǳŎǘ Ŏŀƴ ōŜ ŦƻǳƴŘ ƻƴ ǘƘŜ 
/ƻƳǇŀƴȅΩǎ ǿŜōǎƛǘŜΦ 

Principle 4: Safeguard integrity in financial reporting 

Recommendation 4.1  

The board of a listed entity should: 

(a) have an audit committee which: 

(i) has at least three members, all of whom are 
non-executive directors and a majority of 
whom are independent directors; and 

(ii) is chaired by an independent director, who is 
not the chair of the board, 

and disclose: 

(iii) the charter of the committee; 

(iv) the relevant qualifications and experience of 
the members of the committee; and 

(v) in relation to each reporting period, the 
number of times the committee met 
throughout the period and the individual 
attendances of the members at those 
meetings; or 

(b) if it does not have an audit committee, disclose that 
fact and the processes it employs that independently 
verify and safeguard the integrity of its financial 
reporting, including the processes for the appointment 
and removal of the external auditor and the rotation 
of the audit engagement partner. 

Complying (b) Due to the size and nature of the existing Board and the 
ƳŀƎƴƛǘǳŘŜ ƻŦ ǘƘŜ /ƻƳǇŀƴȅΩǎ ƻǇŜǊŀǘƛƻƴǎ ǘƘŜ /ƻƳǇŀƴȅ ŎǳǊǊŜƴǘƭȅ 
has no Audit and Risk Committee. Pursuant to Clause 4(h) of the 
/ƻƳǇŀƴȅΩǎ .ƻŀǊŘ /ƘŀǊter, the full Board carries out the duties 
that would ordinarily be assigned to the Audit and Risk 
Committee under the written terms of reference for that 
committee. 

The role and responsibilities of the Audit and Risk Committee 
ŀǊŜ ƻǳǘƭƛƴŜŘ ƛƴ {ŎƘŜŘǳƭŜ о ƻŦ ǘƘŜ /ƻƳǇŀƴȅΩǎ /ƻǊǇƻǊŀǘŜ 
DƻǾŜǊƴŀƴŎŜ tƭŀƴ ŀǾŀƛƭŀōƭŜ ƻƴƭƛƴŜ ƻƴ ǘƘŜ /ƻƳǇŀƴȅΩǎ ǿŜōǎƛǘŜΦ  

The Board devote time at annual board meetings to fulfilling the 
roles and responsibilities associated with maintaining the 
/ƻƳǇŀƴȅΩǎ ƛƴǘŜǊƴŀƭ ŀǳŘƛǘ ŦǳƴŎǘƛƻƴ ŀƴŘ ŀǊǊŀƴƎŜƳŜƴǘǎ ǿƛǘƘ 
external auditors. All members of the Board are involved in the 
/ƻƳǇŀƴȅΩǎ ŀǳŘƛǘ ŦǳƴŎǘƛƻƴ ǘƻ ŜƴǎǳǊŜ ǘƘŜ ǇǊƻǇŜǊ ƳŀƛƴǘŜƴŀƴŎŜ ƻŦ 
the entity and the integrity of all financial reporting.  
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Recommendation 4.2 

The board of a listed entity should, before it approves the 
ŜƴǘƛǘȅΩǎ ŦƛƴŀƴŎƛŀƭ ǎǘŀǘŜƳŜƴǘǎ ŦƻǊ ŀ ŦƛƴŀƴŎƛŀƭ ǇŜǊƛƻŘΣ ǊŜŎŜƛǾŜ 
from its CEO and CFO a declaration that the financial records 
of the entity have been properly maintained and that the 
financial statements comply with the appropriate 
accounting standards and give a true and fair view of the 
financial position and performance of the entity and that the 
opinion has been formed on the basis of a sound system of 
risk management and internal control which is operating 
effectively. 

Complying ¢ƘŜ /ƻƳǇŀƴȅΩǎ /ƻǊǇƻǊŀǘŜ DƻǾŜǊƴŀƴŎŜ tƭŀƴ ǎǘŀǘŜǎ ǘƘŀǘ ŀ Řǳǘȅ ŀƴŘ 
responsibility of the Board is to ensure that before approving the 
ŜƴǘƛǘȅΩǎ ŦƛƴŀƴŎƛŀƭ ǎǘŀǘŜƳŜƴǘǎ ŦƻǊ ŀ ŦƛƴŀƴŎƛŀl period, the CEO and CFO 
have declared that in their opinion the financial records of the entity 
have been properly maintained and that the financial statements 
comply with the appropriate accounting standards and give a true and 
fair view of the financial position and performance of the entity and 
that the opinion has been formed on the basis of a sound system of 
risk management and internal control which is operating effectively. 

Recommendation 4.3 

A listed entity that has an AGM should ensure that its 
external auditor attends its AGM and is available to answer 
questions from security holders relevant to the audit. 

Complying ¢ƘŜ /ƻƳǇŀƴȅΩǎ /ƻǊǇƻǊŀǘŜ DƻǾŜǊƴŀƴŎŜ tƭŀƴ ǇǊƻǾƛŘŜǎ ǘƘŀǘ ǘƘŜ .ƻŀǊŘ 
Ƴǳǎǘ ŜƴǎǳǊŜ ǘƘŜ /ƻƳǇŀƴȅΩǎ ŜȄǘŜǊƴŀƭ ŀǳŘƛǘƻǊ ŀǘǘŜƴŘǎ ƛǘǎ !Da ŀƴŘ ƛǎ 
available to answer questions from security holders relevant to the 
audit. 

Principle 5: Make timely and balanced disclosure 

 

Recommendation 5.1  

A listed entity should: 

(a) have a written policy for complying with its continuous 
disclosure obligations under the Listing Rules; and 

(b) disclose that policy or a summary of it. 

Complying (a) ¢ƘŜ /ƻƳǇŀƴȅΩǎ /ƻƴǘƛƴǳƻǳǎ 5ƛǎŎƭƻǎǳǊŜ tƻƭƛŎȅ ŘŜǘŀƛƭǎ ǘƘŜ 
/ƻƳǇŀƴȅΩǎ ŘƛǎŎƭƻǎǳǊŜ ǊŜǉǳƛǊŜƳŜƴǘǎ ŀǎ ǊŜǉǳƛǊŜŘ ōȅ ǘƘŜ !{· 
Listing Rules and other relevant legislation.  

(b) ¢ƘŜ /ƻƳǇŀƴȅΩǎ Continuous Disclosure Policy is available on the 
Company website. 

Principle 6: Respect the rights of security holders 

Recommendation 6.1  

A listed entity should provide information about itself and its 
governance to investors via its website. 

Complying Information about the Company and its governance is available in the 
/ƻǊǇƻǊŀǘŜ DƻǾŜǊƴŀƴŎŜ tƭŀƴ ǿƘƛŎƘ Ŏŀƴ ōŜ ŦƻǳƴŘ ƻƴ ǘƘŜ /ƻƳǇŀƴȅΩǎ 
website.  

Information about the Company and its governance is available in the 
Corporate Governance Plan which can be found on the Company 
website. 

Recommendation 6.2  

A listed entity should design and implement an investor 
relations program to facilitate effective two-way 
communication with investors. 

Complying The Company has adopted a Shareholder Communications Strategy 
which aims to promote and facilitate effective two-way 
communication with investors. The Shareholder Communications 
Strategy outlines a range of ways in which information is 
communicated to shareholders. 

Recommendation 6.3  

A listed entity should disclose the policies and processes it 
has in place to facilitate and encourage participation at 
meetings of security holders. 

Complying The Shareholder Communication Strategy states that as a part of the 
/ƻƳǇŀƴȅΩǎ ŘŜǾŜƭƻǇƛƴƎ ƛƴǾŜǎǘƻǊ ǊŜƭŀǘƛƻƴǎ ǇǊƻƎǊŀƳΣ {ƘŀǊŜƘƻƭŘers can 
register with the Company Secretary to receive email notifications of 
when an announcement is made by the Company to the ASX, 
including the release of the Annual Report, half yearly reports and 
quarterly reports. Links are made available to the ComǇŀƴȅΩǎ ǿŜōǎƛǘŜ 
on which all information provided to the ASX is immediately posted. 

Shareholders are encouraged to participate at all EGMs and AGMs of 
the Company. Upon the despatch of any notice of meeting to 
Shareholders, the Company Secretary shall send out material with 
that notice of meeting stating that all Shareholders are encouraged to 
participate at the meeting. 

Recommendation 6.4 

A listed entity should give security holders the option to 
receive communications from, and send communications to, 
the entity and its security registry electronically. 

Complying Security holders can register with the Company to receive email 
notifications when an announcement is made by the Company to the 
ASX. 

Shareholders queries should be referred to the Company Secretary at 
first instance. 
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Principle 7: Recognise and manage risk 

Recommendation 7.1  

The board of a listed entity should: 

(a) have a committee or committees to oversee risk, each 
of which: 

(i) has at least three members, a majority of 
whom are independent directors; and 

(ii) is chaired by an independent director, 

and disclose: 

(iii) the charter of the committee; 

(iv) the members of the committee; and 

(v) as at the end of each reporting period, the 
number of times the committee met 
throughout the period and the individual 
attendances of the members at those 
meetings; or 

(b) if it does not have a risk committee or committees that 
satisfy (a) above, disclose that fact and the process it 
ŜƳǇƭƻȅǎ ŦƻǊ ƻǾŜǊǎŜŜƛƴƎ ǘƘŜ ŜƴǘƛǘȅΩǎ Ǌƛǎƪ ƳŀƴŀƎŜƳŜƴǘ 
framework.  

Complying  (b) Due to the size and nature of the existing Board and the 
ƳŀƎƴƛǘǳŘŜ ƻŦ ǘƘŜ /ƻƳǇŀƴȅΩǎ ƻǇŜǊŀǘƛƻƴǎ ǘƘŜ /ƻƳǇŀƴȅ ŎǳǊǊŜƴǘƭȅ 
has no Audit and Risk Committee. Pursuant to Clause 4(h) of the 
/ƻƳǇŀƴȅΩǎ .ƻŀǊŘ /ƘŀǊǘŜǊΣ ǘƘŜ Ŧǳƭƭ .ƻŀǊŘ ŎǳǊǊŜƴǘƭȅ ŎŀǊǊƛŜǎ ƻǳǘ 
the duties that would ordinarily be assigned to the Audit and 
Risk Committee under the written terms of reference for that 
committee. 

The role and responsibilities of the Audit and Risk Committee 
ŀǊŜ ƻǳǘƭƛƴŜŘ ƛƴ {ŎƘŜŘǳƭŜ о ƻŦ ǘƘŜ /ƻƳǇŀƴȅΩǎ /ƻǊǇƻǊŀǘŜ 
DƻǾŜǊƴŀƴŎŜ tƭŀƴ ŀǾŀƛƭŀōƭŜ ƻƴƭƛƴŜ ƻƴ ǘƘŜ /ƻƳǇŀƴȅΩǎ ǿŜōǎƛǘŜΦ  

The Board devote time at annual board meeting to fulfilling the 
roles and responsibilities associated with overseeing risk and 
ƳŀƛƴǘŀƛƴƛƴƎ ǘƘŜ ŜƴǘƛǘȅΩǎ Ǌƛǎƪ ƳŀƴŀƎŜƳŜƴǘ ŦǊŀƳŜǿƻǊƪ ŀƴŘ 
associated internal compliance and control procedures. 

Recommendation 7.2 

The board or a committee of the board should: 

(a) ǊŜǾƛŜǿ ǘƘŜ ŜƴǘƛǘȅΩǎ Ǌƛǎƪ management framework with 
management at least annually to satisfy itself that it 
continues to be sound, to determine whether there 
have been any changes in the material business risks 
the entity faces and to ensure that they remain within 
the risk appetite set by the board; and 

(b) disclose in relation to each reporting period, whether 
such a review has taken place. 

Complying  (a) The Company process for risk management and internal 
compliance includes a requirement to identify and measure 
risk, monitor the environment for emerging factors and trends 
that affect these risks, formulate risk management strategies 
and monitor the performance of risk management systems. 
Schedule 8 of the Corporate Governance Plan is entitled 
Ψ5ƛǎŎƭƻǎǳǊŜ ς wƛǎƪ aŀƴŀƎŜƳŜƴǘΩ ŀƴŘ ŘŜǘŀƛƭǎ ǘƘŜ /ƻƳǇŀƴȅΩǎ 
disclosure requirements with respect to the risk management 
review procedure and internal compliance and controls. 

(b) The Board Charter requires the Board to disclose the number 
of times the Board met throughout the relevant reporting 
period, and the individual attendances of the members at 
those meetings. Details of the meetings will be provided in the 
/ƻƳǇŀƴȅΩǎ !ƴƴǳŀƭ wŜǇƻǊǘΦ  

Recommendation 7.3 

A listed entity should disclose: 

(a) if it has an internal audit function, how the function is 
structured and what role it performs; or 

(b) if it does not have an internal audit function, that fact 
and the processes it employs for evaluating and 
continually improving the effectiveness of its risk 
management and internal control processes. 

Complying (b) ScheŘǳƭŜ о ƻŦ ǘƘŜ /ƻƳǇŀƴȅΩǎ /ƻǊǇƻǊŀǘŜ tƭŀƴ ǇǊƻǾƛŘŜǎ ŦƻǊ ǘƘŜ 

internal audit function of the Company. The Board Charter 

outlines the monitoring, review and assessment of a range of 

internal audit functions and procedures.  

Recommendation 7.4 

A listed entity should disclose whether, and if so how, it has 
regard to economic, environmental and social sustainability 
risks and, if it does, how it manages or intends to manage 
those risks. 

Complying {ŎƘŜŘǳƭŜ о ƻŦ ǘƘŜ /ƻƳǇŀƴȅΩǎ /ƻǊǇƻǊŀǘŜ tƭŀƴ ŘŜǘŀƛƭǎ ǘƘŜ /ƻƳǇŀƴȅΩǎ 
risk management systems which assist in identifying and managing 
potential or apparent business, economic, environmental and social 
ǎǳǎǘŀƛƴŀōƛƭƛǘȅ Ǌƛǎƪǎ όƛŦ ŀǇǇǊƻǇǊƛŀǘŜύΦ wŜǾƛŜǿ ƻŦ ǘƘŜ /ƻƳǇŀƴȅΩǎ Ǌƛǎƪ 
management framework is conducted at least annually and reports 
are continually created by management on the efficiency and 
ŜŦŦŜŎǘƛǾŜƴŜǎǎ ƻŦ ǘƘŜ /ƻƳǇŀƴȅΩǎ Ǌƛǎƪ ƳŀƴŀƎŜƳŜƴǘ ŦǊŀƳŜǿƻǊƪ ŀƴŘ 
associated internal compliance and control procedures.  
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Principle 8: Remunerate fairly and responsibly 

 

Recommendation 8.1 

The board of a listed entity should: 

(a) have a remuneration committee which: 

(i) has at least three members, a majority of 
whom are independent directors; and 

(ii) is chaired by an independent director, 

and disclose: 

(iii) the charter of the committee; 

(iv) the members of the committee; and 

(v) as at the end of each reporting period, the 
number of times the committee met 
throughout the period and the individual 
attendances of the members at those 
meetings; or 

(b) if it does not have a remuneration committee, disclose 
that fact and the processes it employs for setting the 
level and composition of remuneration for directors 
and senior executives and ensuring that such 
remuneration is appropriate and not excessive. 

Complying (b) Due to the size and nature of the existing board and the 

magnitudŜ ƻŦ ǘƘŜ /ƻƳǇŀƴȅΩǎ ƻǇŜǊŀǘƛƻƴǎ ǘƘŜ /ƻƳǇŀƴȅ ŎǳǊǊŜƴǘƭȅ 

has no Remuneration Committee. Pursuant to clause 4(h) of the 

/ƻƳǇŀƴȅΩǎ .ƻŀǊŘ /ƘŀǊǘŜǊΣ ǘƘŜ Ŧǳƭƭ .ƻŀǊŘ ŎǳǊǊŜƴǘƭȅ ŎŀǊǊƛŜǎ ƻǳǘ ǘƘŜ 

duties that would ordinarily be assigned to the Remuneration 

Committee under the written terms of reference for that 

committee. 

The role and responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee are 
ƻǳǘƭƛƴŜŘ ƛƴ {ŎƘŜŘǳƭŜ п ƻŦ ǘƘŜ /ƻƳǇŀƴȅΩǎ /ƻǊǇƻǊŀǘŜ DƻǾŜǊƴŀƴŎŜ 
tƭŀƴ ŀǾŀƛƭŀōƭŜ ƻƴƭƛƴŜ ƻƴ ǘƘŜ /ƻƳǇŀƴȅΩǎ ǿŜōǎƛǘŜΦ  

The Board devote time at annual board meetings to fulfilling the 
roles and responsibilities associated with setting the level and 
composition of remuneration for Directors and senior executives 
and ensuring that such remuneration is appropriate and not 
excessive. 

Recommendation 8.2 

A listed entity should separately disclose its policies and 
practices regarding the remuneration of non-executive 
directors and the remuneration of executive directors and 
other senior executives and ensure that the different roles 
and responsibilities of non-executive directors compared to 
executive directors and other senior executives are reflected 
in the level and composition of their remuneration. 

Complying ¢ƘŜ /ƻƳǇŀƴȅΩǎ /ƻǊǇƻǊŀǘŜ DƻǾŜǊƴŀƴŎŜ tƭŀƴ ǊŜǉǳƛǊŜǎ ǘƘŜ .ƻŀǊŘ ǘƻ 
disclose its policies and practices regarding the remuneration of non-
executive, executive and other senior directors. 

Recommendation 8.3 

A listed entity which has an equity-based remuneration 
scheme should: 

(a) have a policy on whether participants are permitted to 
enter into transactions (whether through the use of 
derivatives or otherwise) which limit the economic risk 
of participating in the scheme; and 

(b) disclose that policy or a summary of it. 

Complying (a) /ƻƳǇŀƴȅΩǎ /ƻǊǇƻǊŀǘŜ DƻǾŜǊƴŀƴŎŜ tƭŀƴ ǎǘŀǘŜǎ ǘƘŀǘ ǘƘŜ .ƻŀǊŘ ƛǎ 
required to review, manage and disclose the policy (if any) on 
whether participants are permitted to enter into transactions 
(whether through the use of derivatives or otherwise) which 
limit the economic risk of participating in the scheme. The Board 
must review and approve any equity based plans. 

(b) ! ŎƻǇȅ ƻŦ ǘƘŜ /ƻƳǇŀƴȅΩǎ /ƻǊǇƻǊŀǘŜ DƻǾŜǊƴŀƴŎŜ tƭŀƴ ƛǎ ŀǾŀƛƭŀōƭŜ 
ƻƴ ǘƘŜ /ƻƳǇŀƴȅΩǎ ǿŜōǎƛǘŜΦ 
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Additional information for listed public companies  

The following additional information is required by the Australian Securities Exchange in respect of listed public companies. 

1 Capital 

a. Ordinary Share Capital 

2,893,891,570 ordinary fully paid shares held by 2,794 shareholders. 

b. Unlisted Options over Unissued Shares 

The Company has an additional 650,666,667 options on issue in accordance with section 8.1 of the Directors' Report,  

c. Voting Rights 

The voting rights attached to each class of equity security are as follows: 

 Ordinary shares: Each ordinary share is entitled to one vote when a poll is called, otherwise each member 
present at a meeting or by proxy has one vote on a show of hands. 

 Unlisted Options: Options do not entitle the holders to vote in respect of that option, nor participate in 
dividends, when declared, until such time as the options are exercised and subsequently registered as ordinary 
shares. 

d. Substantial Shareholders as at 28 August 2017 

 Name Number of Ordinary Fully 

Paid Shares Held 

% Held of Issued Ordinary 

Capital 

 Metallica Investments Pty Ltd <Metallica Trust A/C> 242,281,250 8.37 

    

e. Distribution of Shareholders as at 28 August 2017 

 Category (size of holding) Total Holders Number 

Ordinary 

% Held of Issued 

Ordinary Capital  

 1 ς 1,000 673 248,931 0.01 

 1,001 ς 5,000 869 2,063,465 0.07 

 5,001 ς 10,000 196 1,443,054 0.05 

 10,001 ς 100,000 401 16,915,001 0.58 

 100,001 ς and over 655 2,873,221,119 99.29 

 
 2,794 2,893,891,570 100.00 

f. Unmarketable Parcels as at 28 August 2017 

As at 28 August 2017 there were 2,348 fully paid ordinary shareholders holding less than a marketable parcel and 
2,577 holding an uneconomical parcel. 

g. On-Market Buy-Back 

There is no current on-market buy-back. 

h. Restricted Securities 

The Company has no restricted securities on issue. 
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Additional information for listed public companies  

i. 20 Largest Shareholders ñ Ordinary Shares as at as at 28 August 2017 

 Ra

nk 

Name Number of Ordinary Fully 

Paid Shares Held 

% Held of Issued Ordinary 

Capital 

 1.  Metallica Investments Pty Ltd <Metallica Trust A/C> 242,281,250 8.37 

 2.  Mrs Y Bruinsma & Mr J W Bruinsma 106,000,000 3.66 

 3.  Mr Constandinos Kyrkou 104,421,563 3.61 

 4.  Mr Bin Liu 80,190,000 2.77 

 5.  Mr W Jansen & Mrs M G Jansen <W & MG Jensen Super Fund A/C> 55,500,000 1.92 

 6.  Mr D K Jensen & Mrs V T Jensen <Dave & Vanessa Jensen S/F A/C> 50,024,315 1.73 

 7.  Vivaldi Cap Sdn Bhd 50,000,000 1.73 

 8.  Dilkara Nom Pty Ltd < BMS Cons S/F A/C> 50,000,000 1.73 

 9.  Pethol (Vic) Pty Ltd 50,000,000 1.73 

 10.  Rylet Pty Ltd 50,000,000 1.73 

 11.  Bond Street Custodians Limited 50,000,000 1.73 

 12.  Mr William Richard Brown 43,000,000 1.49 

 13.  Calatos Pty Ltd 43,000,000 1.49 

 14.  Mr David James Porter 40,500,000 1.40 

 15.  Mr G J Spelta & Mrs N Spelta  40,003,050 1.38 

 16. D Pomerol Holdings Sdn Bhd 40,000,000 1.38 

 17.  Mr Patrick William Thomas 40,000,000 1.38 

 18.  Bellaire Capital Pty Ltd 40,000,000 1.38 

 19.  Mr Bin Liu 40,000,000 1.38 

 20.  Virgin Pty Ltd 38,516,400 1.33 

  TOTAL 1,253,436,578 43.32 

2 The name of the Company Secretary is Julia Beckett. 

3 Principal registered office 

As disclosed in Note 2 Company details on page 28 of this Annual Report. 

4 REGISTERS OF SECURITIES  

As disclosed in the Corporate directory on page i of this Annual Report. 

5 STOCK EXCHANGE LISTING 

Quotation has been granted for all the ordinary shares of the Company on all Member Exchanges of the Australian 
Securities Exchange Limited, As disclosed in the Corporate directory on page i of this Annual Report. 

6 USE OF FUNDS 

The Company has used its funds in accordance with its initial business objectives. 
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Tenement report 

 

As at 30 June 2017 

In March 2017, Blina acquired the Dingo Gold Project (E31/1138), located approximately 160km north-north-east of Kalgoorlie, 
and to the east of Yerilla and west of Mt Remarkable in the Eastern Goldfields region of Western Australia 

 

 

 



 

 

 


